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Introduction

OUR
C O-O P E R AT I V E
Alliance Group Limited is a leading food and solutions company owned by
New Zealand farmers who produce the finest free-range natural grassfed lamb, beef and venison. Our farming families have deep roots in their
rural communities and care about the land and the environment.
Our world-class technology, meticulous production values, the highest
levels of ethical production, commitment to animal welfare and our
adherence to environmental sustainability all contribute to our reputation
for food excellence.
As New Zealand’s only 100 per cent farmer-owned red meat co-operative,
we put the interests of our farmers at the heart of everything we do.
We are focused on maximising returns to our loyal farmers and supporting
them to run profitable and sustainable farming businesses.
We are working hard to ensure we are world-class in running our plants
and supply chains and then making sure we capture as much value as
we can for farmers from our global markets. It’s important because
New Zealand farming families, our employees’ families and our rural
communities depend on us. We are committed to delivering for them.
We employ almost 5,000 people across New Zealand and are a large
employer in the rural communities in which we operate.
The co-operative connects our passionate farmers with millions of
passionate consumers around the world.
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YEAR IN REVIEW
Co-operative Per formance

Benefits to Shareholders

$

A D VA N C E PAY M E N T S M A D E T O P L AT I N U M A N D G O L D S H A R E H O L D E R S

20.7M

PROFIT BEFORE TA X AND DISTRIBUTION

EQUIT Y R ATIO

63

%

ANNUAL TURNOVER

$

1.7B

$

30.9M

L OYA LT Y PAY M E N T S

$

15.2M

STO R E STO C K FAC I L I TAT I O N

805,736

LAMBS, EWES,
C AT TLE & DEER

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

$

06

9M
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE REVIEW

We are now in the fourth year of our business
transformation strategy to capture greater
market value and maximise operational
performance — and we are seeing strong
results and improved profitability.
Alliance Group began this process with a
‘Get Fit’ phase designed to bring about
improvement to the organisation by lifting
efficiency, lowering our cost structure and
improving our sales and marketing.
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This year has seen strong global prices.
Alliance Group has made good operational
gains, sales and marketing has gathered
momentum and we have continued our
programme of investing in the co-operative
for the long term.
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Our branding has supported this drive to
connect our farmers with our customers.
Increasingly, people want to understand the
provenance of their food; there is huge value
to be gained through bringing consumers and
chefs closer to the farmer.
s

ct
d u ke t
o
r
r
p
D eve
lop new
ma
and

The first loop aims to reduce costs in the business and uses that to return higher prices to our
farmers for their livestock. The second loop is around creating value in the marketplace and
returning this back to farmers. Both loops allow us to invest gains into further reducing our
costs and investing more in products and our markets.
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Over the past year, we have significantly
improved the performance of our sales
and marketing. This has meant the speed
and velocity we are selling product to our
customers has accelerated. We have continued
to build on our strong long-standing customer
relationships. Our sales organisation has done
much work to dive into the data, identify and
pursue many opportunities by geography and
by customer where they can work to create
value for the business.

Alliance Group is moving closer to the
consumer, with the right product, in the most
efficient manner and we have identified a
range of new opportunities to capture greater
value for our farmers.
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We are now in phase two — making our
business model sustainable by building
momentum. We are achieving this through
further investment, growing value-add
products, building organisational capability
and creating market value. Our strategy based
around two ‘virtuous loops’ remains consistent.
We are building an inter-generational business
that creates long-term sustained value for
farmers.

We have continued our focus on maximising
the value we can create from every carcase,
developing our markets and identifying and
delivering precisely what consumers want.

Livestock
volume and
contribution
growth
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Our profit before tax and distribution is
$20.7m and we are pleased to be distributing
a profit distribution of $9m to our farmer
shareholders.

Higher
livestock
price

A YE AR OF STRONG PRO GRESS

SALES AND MARKETING

OUR PERFORMANCE

From the outset, we recognised we had to
evolve our approach as the business moves
forward. We continue to drive efficiencies to
achieve operational gains, however in some
selected areas we have consciously taken on
additional costs to build for the future and stay
ahead of the curve. We remain mindful of the
need to be prudent with shareholders’ funds.

ts

Transformation is not easy. It takes courage
to change. Our eyes are firmly fixed on our
future as a 100 per cent New Zealand farmerowned co-operative, highly connected to our
farmers and operating as a market-focused
global food and solutions business.
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We have continued our drive to increase our
food service presence globally, expanding our
programmes in the UK, New Zealand, Asia and
North America. Key to this is understanding
exactly what chefs want and tailoring products
to meet their needs.
We have also benefited from further developing
our people, bringing more sophisticated sales
discipline, accountability and reporting and
recognising performance.
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We continue to challenge our sales and
marketing function to break into new markets,
work on further brand development, capability
and focus on performance drivers to capture
greater market value and achieve returns for
our farmer shareholders.
PREMIUM BRANDS
Alliance Group is committed to building a
differentiated premium portfolio, providing
our farmers with a supply programme that has
been shaped by the needs of our customers
and markets.
We have put huge effort into developing a
model that makes our premium brands work by
understanding the customers’ needs, the key
factors they base their purchasing decisions
on, such as flavour and taste, and then
developing a mechanism to deliver
these key attributes.
Our strategy has led us to a point where we
are now able to provide a growing portfolio
of differentiated premium brands that link
the market to the farmer. We have run two
successful pilot programmes to commercialise
an offer with premium revenue that delivers a
higher price to farmers for eating quality.
We are now looking at all of the Pure South
products to pinpoint where there are unique
properties in the market for flavour and value.
Potentially, every Alliance Group supplier
can participate in premium returns if they
can produce an animal with the specific
requirements. This programme has now been
rolled out to beef.
LIFTING OUR BEEF PERFORMANCE
While traditionally our business has been
ovine-focused, we recognised that we needed
to lift our performance to become a serious
participant in beef. With the introduction of
our award winning Pure South 55 Day Aged
Handpicked Beef, and our recently launched
Pure South Handpicked Beef programmes, we
have now achieved a step change in this area.
Our beef programmes, developed in response
to demand for premium beef products, are for
shareholders only and provide better returns
for a better quality eating product. We have
also invested in lifting beef performance at
our plants and our Mataura, Levin and Pukeuri
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plants processed record numbers of cattle
during the 2018-19 season.
Our beef programme has taken the learnings
from our other premium portfolio products,
Silere and TE MANA, and applied them to
Handpicked and 55 Day Aged. Handpicked
is achieving an 80 cents per kilogram
premium and 55 Day Aged Beef $1 per
kilogram premium.
Alliance Group is stepping into a space to
globally differentiate our beef and get a
premium for it. We have developed our people
to accurately assess quality to make sure
the customer gets a consistent result. We
are providing feedback to farmers on every
individual carcase, so they can review carcase
quality with their farming approach
to maximise returns over time.
VOL ATILIT Y
This year, we witnessed a significant level of
volatility and disruption in the sector not seen
for some time.
Our farmers told us their greatest concerns are
the significant regulatory changes, including
the Zero Carbon Bill, freshwater reform, the
One Billion Trees programme and associated
carbon price incentives and moves to lift the
capital requirements for banks.
Collectively, these changes could be
the biggest disruption in farming since the
1980s, placing additional costs on farmers
and the sector.
The company has made submissions to
government on these issues and we are
working with industry bodies and government
to emphasise the importance of the right
decisions being made for farmers, rural
communities and the New Zealand economy.
There are uncertainties in global markets,
including the US/China trade dispute, Brexit,
the slow GDP growth in the western world
and negative interest rates in some European
countries and Japan.
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We maintain an active watch on the rise of
alternative proteins, although this is yet to
impact the business materially.
Many farmers have been faced with the
challenge of the Mycoplasma bovis (M. bovis)
outbreak and phased eradication programme.
The 2018/19 summer was difficult for some
farmers and rural communities. Farmers in
the Nelson/ Tasman region faced both drought
conditions and fires during February 2019.
During the fires in the Nelson area, we offered
grazing for affected farmers in Canterbury
and other areas. During the drought period,
farmers in the region made good use of our
free store stock facilitation service. We also
supported community events held to enable
affected farmers to get together and share
their experiences.
Cash-flow is important to farmers. This year
we increased the advance payments for lamb
by 25 per cent.

H E A LT H A N D S A F E T Y
Health and safety remains our number
one priority. In the last five years, we have
improved our Total Recordable Injury Frequency
Rate (TRIFR) by 80 per cent. This year, we
have significantly stepped up our work around
critical risk, the safety issues which may result
in serious injuries.
We have focused on five key areas:
+

Ammonia

+

Asbestos

+

Traffic management

+

Energy isolation

+

Machine guarding

However, putting attention into critical
risks saw some focus diverted from everyday
behaviours around health and safety. As a
result, we saw our TRIFR plateau. We have
redoubled our efforts, working hard across the
company to turn this around. As a result, we
have again started to see improvement with
injury rates falling.

We have installed a series of machine
guarding safety improvements across our
plant network and continue to improve our
internal processes, procedures and systems.
This year, we also completed our programme
of replacing all our production bandsaws
with BladeStop bandsaws.
In June, Alliance Group was sentenced on a
charge relating to a serious incident at our
Mataura plant. We pleaded guilty at the
earliest opportunity and voluntarily provided
reparation and offered support to our injured
employee. We were disappointed at our failure
to identify a hazard.
We are also focusing on initiatives to support
and promote wellbeing. This includes our Mates
at the Gate mental health initiative to help
us better identify any signs of depression or
distress among our colleagues. Mates at the
Gate is about creating a safety net to ensure
people don’t slip through the cracks and to
encourage people to seek the help of our
support services.
Our goal is to ensure every member of our team
goes home to their family safe and well at the
end of every day.
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SUPP ORTING OUR PEOPLE
This year saw the launch of a very important
piece of work around culture and values. We
asked over 300 people from across every area
of our business to tell us what values they felt
we needed to create a business that is high
performing and a great place to work. The
values developed were chosen by our people
and the commitment, energy, enthusiasm and
activity this programme has generated among
our workforce is significant.
We will continue to grow our organisational
culture and capability, because that is a
key foundation on which the growth of the
business is based.
Training and development is an area where
we did not think we were doing enough, so
this year we have invested in plant training
and supervisory programmes for almost
2,000 plant employees. Of this, 1,700 people
are participating in our meat processing
qualification pathway, 120 supervisors
are undertaking training, we have trade
apprenticeships underway and almost 200
staff are on other development programmes.
This is important because it is about people’s
ability to do their jobs, about building
their future and giving them the ability to
develop their careers because of the skills
and experience they have. At the same time,
it is about building results. This year saw a
significant number of people promoted to more
senior roles within the business. Our goal is to
keep that pipeline going, through developing
our own talent.

14

Prime Minister, the Rt. Hon Jacinda Ardern, opening our new
$15.9 million venison plant at Lorneville.

INVESTING IN OUR PLANTS
We are focused on accelerating our plant
modernisation programme to enable us to
continue to grow and strengthen
the co-operative.
Our investment programme has included:
+	$3.4m on upgrading Engine Room One at
Lorneville, which has delivered improved
efficiency and plant safety;
+	A further $1.4m at Dannevirke, on top of the
$10.6m investment there last year. The latest
work included a reconfiguration of further
processing operations and vacuum packing
technology, to increase line speed capacity
by 20 per cent and create more opportunity
for farmers to supply the co-operative;
+	A $1.2m upgrade to our Smithfield Plant,
lifting efficiency by 20 per cent;
+	Investing in a comprehensive asset
management strategy and the
implementation of new systems for
maintenance planning and tracking,
which has resulted in a three per cent
increase in plant reliability year on year.
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ME ATEOR JOINT VENTURE

S U P P LY C H A I N

PA RT N E R S H I P

The past year has seen changes to our
supply chain and sales and operations
approach as we improve the way we work
together to support our strategic goals of
maximising operational performance and
capturing greater market value.

In April this year, we invested $18.8 million
(after final working capital contributions)
in a joint venture partnership with Scales
Corporation, which saw Alliance Group acquire
a 50 per cent stake in the Meateor New
Zealand pet food business. It puts Alliance
Group in the lead position in the New Zealand
pet food market, provides potential for future
opportunities and immediate and direct access
to the highly attractive and growing global
pet food market.
ENTERPRISE RESOURCE
PL ANNING PROJECT
Our $57m Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
project is one of our key strategic initiatives
and includes the replacement of our legacy
1980s mainframe IT system with world-class
technology solutions.
An organisation as large and complex as
Alliance Group needs people to be able to do
their jobs as effectively as possible. The ERP
project will change the way we work across the
business from the sales desk, through to the
slaughterboard, production and shipping.
It will provide greater ability to forecast,
optimise the production decisions we make for
our suppliers and customers and enable us to
make better decisions about what products
we market and where we put those products.

The changes have driven improvements in the
way we work together across the sales, plants
and supply chain teams, with support from IT,
to maximise the velocity of sales, from
production through to loading, shipping
and invoicing.
We have a dedicated process of daily meetings
between sales, plants and supply chain to
make sure we deal with operational issues
as they happen, ensure we have containers
and capacity ready on site to ship the stock
and make sure every task is executed as
efficiently as possible. The benefits of this for
the business and for our farmer shareholders is
that we are getting faster inventory turns.
This has also been a great example of our
company values in action, with our people
effectively, working as a team across divisions
and taking care of one another. It has
increased the speed of delivery, accelerated
cash flow and supported us in capturing
greater market value.

The project represents one of the largest
investments in our history and will support our
transformation to a dynamic value-added food
and solutions producer that takes the best of
New Zealand to the world’s markets.
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SHAREHOLDERS

THANK YOU

This year, we welcomed 147 new shareholders.
Alliance Group made a non-taxable bonus
share issue to shareholders in December
2018. The bonus share issue was based on
livestock supplied by shareholders during
the 2017-2018 season.

Our co-operative is 100 per cent farmer
owned. It is core to our DNA that farmers
own this company and have a stake in the
value chain and control of their destiny
beyond the farm gate. We always appreciate
hearing from shareholders. We have an active
programme to meet with farmers, at field
days, our workshops, plant tours, roadshow
programme and our Annual Meeting. Overall,
the conversations we have demonstrate our
farmers value the steps we are taking to build
a stronger, more profitable and sustainable
business that benefits their farm businesses
and their wider rural communities now and into
the future. There is more to do.

Alliance Group also worked with Inland
Revenue to have an amendment to the Income
Tax Act regarding co-operative distribution
payments, enacted in July 2019. This now
means we can attach imputation credits to
cash distributions calculated on the basis of
animals supplied by shareholders.
GOVERNANCE
The Alliance Group board has reviewed the cooperative’s constitution. A number of proposed
changes are recommended by the board to
shareholders and these are detailed along
with explanatory notes in the formal Notice
of Annual Meeting of shareholders set out in
a separate document sent to shareholders
and on the company’s website.
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Thank you to all our farmer shareholders for
your ongoing support of the co-operative. And
thank you to our people, across every part of
our operation, who have worked incredibly hard
and every day bring their skills, enthusiasm
and commitment to our workplaces.

Vanessa Stoddart stepped down from the
Alliance board in April 2019. We thank Vanessa
for her significant contribution during her time
on the board.

M J Taggart
CHAIRMAN

D R Surveyor
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

20 November 2019
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K E E P I N G O U R P EO P L E H E A LT H Y A N D S A F E
The health and safety of our people is paramount. Whilst our focus on
critical risks increased, our injury rates plateaued this year.
The company’s injury rate (TRIFR) has improved
by 80 per cent over the past five years, but this
year levelled off. We responded and redoubled
our commitment to staff, supervisor and plant
leadership safety training. We are constantly
looking at ways to improve our safety
behaviours and procedures and investing in
areas where we see greater risks to our people.
We are continuing to make major investments
in addressing our safety risks and invested
more than $20 million over the past four years
in areas such as traffic management, ammonia
safety, machine guarding and making safe
areas where asbestos has been found to be
present. We are also rolling out standard
operating procedures across the company
to ensure all work is done in the best and
safest ways.

BL ADESTOP TECHNOLOGY
This year, we completed our programme of
replacing all our production bandsaws with
BladeStop bandsaws, designed specifically for
the meat industry. Our investment in these
bandsaws has now topped $6.4 million. As
soon as the new technology became available,
we installed the latest 600 series bandsaws,
which are designed for the cutting of large
primals /carcases, and also upgraded every one
of our existing 400 series, to further improve
stop speeds. The BladeStop bandsaws are
designed to reduce the risk of serious injuries
by mechanically stopping the blade within
nine milliseconds when the unit senses contact
with the operator. The stoppage times are
the fastest available and can mean a huge
difference between having a small skin cut
or a very serious injury.

These investments are important but the most
powerful health and safety tool we have is
our people so we have undertaken refresher
safety behaviour training across our plants.
By making health and safety actions and
conversations part of the working day, we help
all our people go home to family and friends
safe and well.
TOTAL RECORDABLE INJURIE S

EROADS UPGR ADE

MATE S AT THE GATE

Our livestock team’s vehicle fleet has been
fitted with the eRoads system to optimise
safety and productivity. eRoads is widely
used to help manage health and safety
outcomes. It provides real-time identification
of the driving activity and the location. It
also reports on driver behaviour. The vehicles
include an emergency alert button if the driver
requires assistance. Since the introduction of
eRoads system, there has been a significant
improvement in driver behaviour, reducing the
number of speeding events, rapid acceleration
and heavy braking. Twenty per cent of drivers
in the livestock team are now routinely ranking
in the top ten per cent of the total eRoads
driving population in New Zealand (n 100,000).

One of our initiatives to support and promote
wellbeing among our people is our innovative
Mates at the Gate wellbeing programme.
This is designed to help all of our people to
better understand and recognise any signs of
depression or distress among our colleagues
and connect them with practical advice about
what they can do to help. The programme
was instigated by Dave Armstrong, health
and safety manager at our Smithfield plant,
along with Professor Annette Beautrais from
the University of Canterbury and the South
Canterbury District Health Board.

The livestock fleet vehicles all meet
the Five Star ANCAP (Australasian New
Car Assessment Programme) rating for
vehicle safety.
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A number of volunteers from each of our sites
have received training as ‘connectors’ so they
can link colleagues experiencing problems to
the best source of help. Since its launch, we
have seen an encouraging increase in the use
of our employee assistance programme (EAP).

We ensure vehicles reflect any specific driver
disability or characteristic such as height or
leg room. All vehicles are fitted with a first aid
kit, fire extinguisher, reflective vest, torch and
emergency triangle.
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OUR PEOPLE
We want Alliance Group to be a great place to work, for people who
want to make a difference to the agricultural sector. We want to be a
business and employer that is committed to making a difference for
families and communities and supporting people to build rewarding
careers in the red meat sector. Strong organisational culture and values
are essential to creating that environment.
An important piece of work this year has been
the roll out of our Alliance Group culture and
values. These values were generated by our
people and they have owned the programme’s
roll-out across the business.
This is the first initiative of this type, on this
scale, to be carried out in our organisation.
It has strongly resonated with our people,
generated a lot of important conversations
and created a real buzz and enthusiasm.
People are telling us that they are proud to
work for a co-operative whose values they
identify with.
Another strong focus is developing our own
talent and providing career paths and goals
for our people. This year saw a number of
significant promotions in many parts of our
business. This highlights the strength of talent
we have at Alliance Group.
We recognised we were not doing enough to
develop our people and are now investing
strongly in building capability and developing
our people. At any one time, there is a large
amount of meaningful training underway.
Training and development is vital to the success
of our business. It improves people’s ability to
do their jobs, it enables them to develop their
career and improves organisational outcomes.

24

C U LT U R E A N D VA LU E S
In June, we launched our new Alliance
Group values and introduced the supporting
behaviours that underpin them. Our goal is to
be a world-class global food and solutions cooperative. We have to ensure Alliance Group is
always high performing and a great place to
work. We have a very strong strategy in place,
a clear vision and purpose and a great team.
But to bring that all together and make it
deliver for us, we need to develop our
company culture.
Our Alliance Group values, and the behaviours
underpinning them, were developed through
an extensive process and workshops with more
than 300 people across all of our sites.
The values form a crucial part of organisational
culture by providing guidelines for
everyone’s behaviour.

Our people have a huge amount of pride in
and passion for Alliance Group. Our aim is to
harness this better, by agreeing some baseline
behaviours under each value, and to build our
culture and lift our performance.
Every team, site and office individually
designed the way they would introduce the
programme to their teams. The process
saw people across our business engaging in
conversation about our values.
This is helping our people to break down
hierarchies and create new more collaborative
ways of working. We have values champions
on every site, who have volunteered to help
bring our values to life. We’ve ‘given them
the car keys’ and asked them to design their
own programme for their workplace and we’ll
provide the resources they need.

A good example of our values in action is that
our Lorneville site management decided there
was an opportunity to connect more closely
with supervisors and operators on the floor.
They restructured their roles so they can better
lead and serve the people they are responsible
for. This has meant some people relinquishing
some responsibilities, but they were prepared
to do that, to achieve a better way of working.
Values only work if our people live them.
We will continue to work to ensure all
our employees are engaged in and living
our values. This is the beginning — the
conversations are ongoing and the outcomes
will help create a high-performance results
culture and a great workplace.
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RECRUITMENT
Like many sectors in regional New Zealand,
sourcing seasonal employees is one of the
industry’s biggest challenges and ongoing
labour shortages have, at times, impacted our
livestock processing capacity along with our
ability to meet the needs of our customers.
Employing New Zealanders is always our
preference, however, given the shortages of
skilled and unskilled candidates at processing
plants over recent years, we do need to look
overseas for employees to supplement our local
workforce. We have had some success in the
past year employing people from overseas to
fill roles that otherwise would not have been
filled from local employment.
The regional labour shortage is a complex
issue and there is no one solution that will
resolve it in the short term. It will require a
wide range of approaches involving companies
and government to ensure that regional
labour markets can support local industries.
We run extensive recruitment campaigns
across New Zealand and work with a range
of organisations including Work and Income,
the Ministry for Social Development and local
development agencies to try and source local
staff. We have offered enhanced employment
conditions and a range of flexible work options
to make jobs more attractive and accessible to
a wider number of people in communities, such
as those with family commitments. We are also
working with other companies and the Meat
Industry Association to develop an industry
workforce strategy that will build a more
sustainable workforce by introducing initiatives
to attract more people to careers in the sector.
SUPP ORT FOR STAFF FOLLOWING
CHRISTCHURCH TERROR AT TACK
The terror attack in Christchurch had a
significant impact on our people and our
processing plants. Some of our people
lost friends and family and we provided a
range of support, including counselling and
bereavement leave. Alliance Group, along
with the other main meat processors and
the Meat Industry Association, launched a
charitable trust to benefit those affected by
the tragedy. Farmers sending their stock to
Alliance Group could nominate either a number
of animals or a sum of money from the sale,
with the proceeds being paid directly to the
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UNION COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

Meat Industry Association Halal Community
Response Fund. The funds were distributed to
the “Our People, Our City Fund”, part of The
Christchurch Foundation.
ALLIANCE GROUP
T R A I N I N G PAT H WAY
In December 2018, Alliance Group launched
our new staff training programme, the most
comprehensive programme the co-operative
has ever undertaken to upskill our workers.
By the end of 2019, about 2,000 people will
have participated in on-job training and
assessment. The programme also includes
leadership training and an apprenticeship
programme for trades.
Our bespoke training pathway gives existing
staff as well as new employees a formal
qualification, and allows them to progress
through bronze, silver, gold and platinum
levels to attain New Zealand Meat Certificates
in Meat Processing on the New Zealand
Qualification framework. We are providing
meat processing training for 1,700 people
and development plans are in progress for
190 people.
The bronze training is provided to new
employees and existing staff as part of their
work duties, so everyone does it as part of
their job and has the same base levels of skill.
Supervisor training has also become part of
every supervisor’s professional development,
with 120 already participating. We are also
offering training to staff working in the
engineering and maintenance areas at
our plants.
There has been an enthusiastic response to
the programme. Some of our people have
not undertaken any training since leaving
school, for some that is over 40 years ago.
We provide significant support, with trainers
and supervisors stepping people through the
entire process as needed. Our supervisors tell
us that the training provides a confidence
boost, alongside new skills. Once people have
begun the process, they are eager to move on
to further stages.

Sarah Hoffman

Emma Stevenson

UNDERGR ADUATE BUR SARIE S
Emma Stevenson and Sarah Hoffman were
selected from a large number of high calibre
applicants for Alliance Group’s 2019 employee
and shareholder undergraduate bursaries.
The bursaries are for school leavers who are
planning to pursue a course of study in areas
relating to the meat industry, its associated
industries and/or primary production.
Emma is studying for a Bachelor of Science
majoring in Animal Science at Lincoln
University. She grew up in Oamaru and has
very strong ties to the Pukeuri Plant, her
grandfather William Stevenson worked at the
plant from the age of 16-60 years old. She
hopes to one day find a role either working in
the lab or working alongside farmers advising
them of options of treatments for their stock
to get the best outcome.

In January 2019, New Zealand Meat Workers
Union (NZMWU) members ratified a new
collective agreement between Alliance Group
and the NZMWU. The agreement includes
a general rate increase and importantly
addresses some of the key challenges affecting
our processing business. This includes skills
shortages and attendance, as well as ensuring
agreement for the next term of the collective
to address legislative changes such as
minimum wage.
The company and union bargaining teams
worked together to design and agree on
initiatives, which include forums to work
together on health and safety issues,
productivity initiatives and incentivising
attendance. There are greater opportunities
to be trained in new skills and work across
the process and enhanced benefits for those
who maintain excellent attendance. This
complements the comprehensive training
programme we already have underway
for our staff.

Sarah is the daughter of David Hoffman,
a plumber at our Lorneville plant. She is
studying for a Bachelor of Science, majoring
in Biochemistry, as well as a Diploma in
Languages at Otago University. Sarah
has a strong interest in genetics and food
technology, as well as environmental
sustainability, blood products and tissue work.
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S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y, E N V I R O N M E N T
AND OUR COMMUNITIES
We are committed to meeting high
standards of environmental practice
and are constantly looking ahead to
make sure our practices allow for us
to be in business for the long term.
MATAUR A CONSENT S RENE WAL
AND ENVIRONMENTAL UP GR ADE S
Alliance Group is committed to improving the
operational performance of our plants and we
also monitor our plants’ environmental impacts
and assess what improvements are needed to
meet both current and likely future regulations.
We have lodged an application with
Environment Southland for new resource
consents for our Mataura plant. This is to:
+	take water from the hydro race, fed by the
Mataura River, for cooling water purposes;
+	take water from the hydro race, fed by the
Mataura River, for meat processing and truck
washing activities;

The application includes a proposed
wastewater treatment upgrade. This proposed
$14m capital investment will include a staged
programme to install a disinfection system
and biological treatment plant and will
create significant water-saving opportunities.
The overall programme would result in
improvements to water quality in the Mataura
River and improve the resilience of our
wastewater treatment plant. After an effects
and options assessment, we are proposing to
install improved fish screening on our water
takes where this is required.
The proposed disinfection treatment system
is designed to kill pathogens remaining in the
wastewater, while the biological treatment
plant will significantly reduce the amount
of nitrogen in the discharge. This is required
as part of catchment wide improvements to
improve water quality in the Mataura River
and the downstream Toetoes Estuary.

New Zealand farmers are committed to
tackling their impact on the environment.
Sheep and beef farmers have already reduced
their carbon emissions by around 30% below
1990 levels on the back of productivity and
efficiency gains.
The Government has set a target to be carbon
neutral by 2050. The Zero Carbon Bill, which
has recently been passed by Parliament,
establishes a framework so New Zealand is
contributing to the global effort to limit the
global average temperature increase to 1.5°
celsius above pre-industrial levels.

+	discharge treated plant wastewater to the
Mataura River;
+	dam and divert water using an existing
weir and hydro race structure.

Alliance Group provided a written and
oral submission to the parliamentary
select committee and supported our
farmer shareholders and suppliers to make
submissions.

Mataura plant
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SUBMISSIONS ON ZERO CARBON
BILL AND FRE SHWATER PROP OSAL S

We pressed for the targets to be made based
on scientific analysis and have opposed the
target for gross methane emissions to be
reduced by 10 per cent by 2030 and 24-47 per
cent by 2050.
Our concern is that a “Net Zero” target for
CO 2 emissions may accelerate the conversion of
otherwise productive pasture-based land used
for food production to pine forest. A reduction
in farm production will have a serious effect
on farmers, our business, rural communities
and the wider economy. It’s also important to
remember that the Paris Agreement requires
that any programme must not threaten food
production. The world needs to feed
its population.

In our submission, we supported the ambition
of the Bill. However, we told the select
committee the Bill will impose enormous
economic costs on the country and impact
regional communities who depend on
pastoral agriculture.
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We welcome the Government’s decision to
support a farm-level approach to reduce
agricultural emissions. The Government agreed
to an alternative partnership approach put
forward by 11 agricultural sector organisations
called He Waka Eke Noa. While the approach
will involve establishing a price on agricultural
emissions by 2025, crucially this will not
happen through the ETS and will happen
at the farm gate.
The sector is now working with the government
to develop a framework that is practical and
simple for farmers, rewards positive change
and supports farmers to reduce and offset
farming’s emissions.
FRE SHWATER REFORMS
Consultation on the Government’s freshwater
proposals closed in October and we made a
detailed submission regarding the potential
significant impacts the proposed changes
would have on the operations of our
processing plants.
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY

While we generally support the ambition of the
proposals for cleaner freshwater, the planned
river quality limits are excessively tight and
exceed current levels already consented by
regional councils. We want the Government
to re-assess the proposed dissolved inorganic
nitrogen (DIN) and dissolved reactive
phosphorous (DRP) national bottom lines.
The proposed limits are likely to result in
substantial economic costs to the co-operative
and farmers without resulting in improving
environmental outcomes. Alliance Group has
invested significantly in improving our water
use efficiency and upgrading our wastewater
plants in recent years, but we are concerned it
might not be enough to meet the requirements
of the Government’s proposals.

We are looking at upgrading the existing boiler
at our Mataura plant to improve its efficiency
and considering further opportunities for the
future. Natural gas is unavailable in the South
Island, so we are investigating the potential to
eventually replace boilers with one fuelled
by biomass.

Alliance Group has had a collaborative
agreement with the Energy Efficiency and
Conservation Authority (EECA) since 2015.
This has resulted in a number of energy-saving
projects across the business and an associated
improvement in energy efficiency. We have a
goal of ending the use of coal at our plants
within 10 years and we are examining other
fuel options across our network.

In August this year, we installed a new energysaving high temperature heat pump to reduce
diesel use at our Nelson plant. The heat pump,
which will help cut carbon emissions, recycles
waste heat from the plant’s refrigeration
systems. A first for the New Zealand red meat
processing industry, the heat pump
was installed in collaboration with EECA.

We have tracked the carbon emissions from our
plants for a number of years, however we now
produce a broader assessment which includes
the likes of air travel and company vehicles.
Our seven plants have annual performance
targets for fuel and electricity use.

WAT E R S AV I N G
INITIATIVE S WELCOMED

Our plants use a range of fuels. Levin and
Dannevirke operate on natural gas, Nelson
diesel and Smithfield, Pukeuri, Mataura and
Lorneville use coal.

At the time of writing we await the next
steps from the select committee and
the Government.
The way New Zealand farms is something
the country should be proud of. Our farmers
produce nutritious and fantastic grass-fed,
hormone-free food the world wants to eat.
We should celebrate what we do best.

During the 2018/19 drought in the Tasman
region, Tasman District Council made special
mention at a drought taskforce meeting of the
efforts made by the team at our Nelson plant,
where water use was reduced by more than 25
per cent. They also acknowledged the flowon impact to our business and staff and the
essential service we provide to the farming
community and to the Nelson/
Tasman economy.
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O U R FA R M E R S A N D T H E I R P RO D U C E

S U P P O RT F O R FA R M E R S D U R I N G
FIRE AND DROUGHT

As a co-operative, our focus is on providing competitive pricing to our
farmers and balancing capacity to ensure we can process livestock
when they want us to.
L OYA LT Y PAY M E N T S

Farmers enjoyed strong prices across
most species over the past 12 months. We
implemented changes to the structure of our
pricing schedule to make it clearer the actual
pricing opportunity for stock when processed
by Alliance Group. The schedule now sets out
the maximum price available if stock meet
our market needs. For example, for lambs,
this includes shorn /bellied premium, farm
assurance, loyalty and antibiotic-free status.
If lambs don’t qualify for these characteristics,
then deductions are applied to the relevant
weight /grade price. The same approach applies
to sheep, cattle and deer.

Alliance Group distributed $15.2m in loyalty
payments to Alliance Group shareholders.
Loyalty payments are distributed quarterly to
reward Platinum and Gold shareholders who
supply 100 per cent of their livestock to the
company. Farmers are paid an additional
10 cents per kilogram for each lamb, six cents
per kg for sheep, 8.5 cents per kg for cattle and
10 cents per kg for deer. Our loyal shareholders
are the backbone of the co-operative and our
loyalty payments scheme rewards them for
their committed and consistent
livestock supply.

FREE STORE STO CK SERVICE

MINIMUM PRICE CONTRACTS

Our farmers made very good use of our free
store stock facilitation service, which enables
them to move lambs, ewes, cattle and deer
to other farms when required. Our farmers
tell us this service is of great benefit to
them, particularly at difficult times. This
was illustrated during the drought period in the
Tasman region at the beginning of the year,
which saw more store lambs from the region
moved elsewhere than ever before. We now
employ a dedicated store stock manager.
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Our Minimum Price Contracts (MPC) provide
farmers with visibility of the minimum price
they can expect as well as giving them
confidence they will be able to get their lambs
processed when they want. This year we
offered contracts for lambs, sheep, cattle and
deer, which were well-received by our farmer
suppliers for the certainty they delivered. They
protect the farmer from any downside in the
market, while allowing them to participate in
any upside. They also help the co-operative
plan for stock flows, ensuring the required
capacity is available for farmers when needed
and helps with processing efficiencies.
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Chief Executive David Sur veyor speaking during the
Alliance Group annual roadshows

ANNUAL ROADSHOWS
Approximately 850 people attended the
Alliance Group annual roadshows, held at 24
venues across the country during September
and October 2019.
The roadshows provided an opportunity for our
farmer shareholders, and farmers interested in
finding out more about Alliance Group to meet
with our directors and Executive Leadership
Team. There were many other opportunities
throughout the year to meet with directors and
members of the ELT, including field days, our
Annual Meeting and at other events. This year,
we launched our ‘Know Your Co-operative’
programme, which gave farmers a detailed
look at the company and our approach
to governance.

The 2018/19 summer was difficult for farmers
and rural communities in the Nelson/ Tasman
region. During the fires in the Nelson area in
February 2019, we offered grazing for affected
farmers. During the drought period, farmers
in the region made good use of our free store
stock facilitation service, which enables
farmers to move lambs to other properties
for fattening. David Miller, our livestock
representative for Nelson /Golden Bay, moved
more store lambs than ever before this year,
most of them to the Canterbury area. We
also provided meat for a barbecue for about
200 farmers and their families, organised
by Alliance Group farmer shareholders Lisa
Anglesey and Natasha Newport which was held
at Tapawera Rugby Club in Nelson. This was
an opportunity for farmers to get together for
some social time and share their experiences.
SUPP ORTING AG PROUD
We supported the farmer advocacy
group Ag Proud at two free BBQ events in
Christchurch and Auckland. The Ag Proud
initiative aims to create awareness around
mental health and wellbeing for those in
the sector and their families, promote
positive agricultural practices and strengthen
the relationship between urban and
rural communities.
FA R M A L L I A N C E A P P U P DAT E
At the end of 2018, we released the new version
of our Farm Alliance app. This incorporated a
number of improvements to the app including
new functionality to allow for easier recording
of data for the Farm Assurance Programme
(FAP). The app allows our farmers to enter data
offline and then sync the information when
back within range of Wi-Fi.
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SUPP ORTING THE RMPP
ACTION NETWORK

SPONSORING THE EWE
HOGGET COMPETITION

Alliance Group is a partner in the Red Meat
Profit Partnership Action Network. This is an
initiative to support farmers to develop the
confidence to turn ideas into action on-farm.
Action Network Action Groups are supported by
trained facilitators to guide a group and help
identify experts who can share their knowledge
and ideas to help achieve farmers’ goals.

Alliance Group sponsored the New Zealand Ewe
Hogget competition. Alliance Group suppliers
Allan and Leeann Woodrow from Gore were
breed section winners for Perendale and won
the special award for Phenotype.

Areas selected by Alliance Group suppliers
ranged from lamb finishing to low carbon
footprint farming, Wagyu beef and Silere
Alpine Origin Merino.
Members work together, with the support of a
trained rural facilitator, to help them get the
most out of the group. Funding enables groups
to share resources, such as expert advice,
which many individual farm businesses might
not be able to afford on their own. Importantly,
it also encourages farmers to share ideas,
experience and advice with one another in a
supportive environment of like-minded fellow
farmers and rural professionals.
PL ANT TOURS PRO GR AMME
During February and March, we ran a series of
tours of our processing plants for our farmer
shareholders. These proved so popular that
many were over-subscribed. They provided
our farmer shareholders with the opportunity
to see plants in action, gain insights into our
processing capabilities and talk to members
of our team. The 2-3 hour visits included the
tour, an update on global markets and a
presentation from plant staff. Farmers were
impressed by the scale of technology, health
and safety and hygiene. They also gained a
strong sense of Alliance Group as an innovative
food company.
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SUPP ORTING THE HILUX
RUR AL GAMES
Alliance Group once again supported the
Hilux New Zealand Rural Games, New Zealand’s
premier celebration of rural sport, held in
Palmerston North in March. We provided Pure
South lamb and beef for the Norwood NZ
Rural Sports Awards dinner at the event.
In turn, we had naming rights for the VIP
marquee, the Alliance VIP Hospitality Marquee.
KNOW YOUR
CO-OPER ATIVE SEMINAR
Our ‘Know Your Co-operative’ seminar in
July provided some of our Platinum and Gold
shareholders with an opportunity to gain an
in-depth understanding of Alliance Group.
The aim was to enable participants to be
better informed about the co-operative, gain
governance exposure and be able to share their
knowledge with other farmers. The seminar in
Christchurch was limited to 12 people to ensure
a quality experience for participants. Not
only did participants tell us they felt they had
benefited from the seminar, it also provided
thought-provoking challenges for members of
the Alliance Group team taking part. We plan
to hold a similar event next year.
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GROWING OUR BR ANDS TO TR ANSFORM
OUR BUSINESS
We invested significantly in initiatives to
capture greater market value for our farmers’
products over the past 12 months. We worked
to get closer to our customers and consumers,
strengthening our food service presence
in key markets, accelerating our premium
brand development, increasing our value-add
capabilities and unlocking more value from
core products.
In New Zealand and globally, we have a sales
and marketing team with great depth of skills
and experience. We have continued to invest
in our sales and marketing function so it can
deliver on our ambition to become a global
food and solutions company.
By securing a greater understanding of
consumer behaviours, Alliance Group is
developing our portfolio to precisely meet those
needs. We are working with our partners to
enable us to continue to build that knowledge
and to make better decisions about what
consumers want and need.
A key aspect to capturing greater value is
building more connection between our farmer
supplier base and the customer.

ME ATEOR
In April, Alliance Group entered into an
agreement with Scales Corporation to acquire
a 50 per cent interest in Meateor’s New Zealand
pet food business. Meateor processes and
markets high-quality lamb, venison, beef and
offal ingredients to global pet food customers
and Alliance Group is a supplier of raw
materials to this sector. The acquisition
marked an exciting step forward in our
transformation journey to become a food
and solutions company.
The joint venture has extended Alliance Group’s
reach up the value chain and ensures we now
have an end-to-end connection with the pet
food market. It also means Alliance Group can
capture more value for each animal.
Importantly, the acquisition delivered
immediate earnings for Alliance Group. We now
have a leading position in the New Zealand pet
food ingredients market, with Meateor’s two
processing plants in Dunedin and Hastings.
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GROWING OUR PRESENCE IN THE
FO O D S E RVI C E S EC TO R
This year, we have continued our drive to
grow our food service presence globally by
expanding our programmes in the UK, NZ and
North America. Key to this is understanding
exactly what chefs want and tailoring our
products to meet their needs. Consumers will
pay a premium for the qualities they value and
aspire to. We bring a very strong proposition —
naturally nutritious products from animals that
are free-range, grass-fed, hormone-free, antibiotic free and raised according to the highest
welfare standards. Importantly, we connect
chefs and consumers back to passionate expert
farmers in some of the most stunning natural
locations in the world.
We have a strong team on the ground in the
UK, who are building very good relationships
across the food service sector. We are now
supplying, among others, the award-winning
Peninsula restaurant at the Intercontinental
London and the O2, at Canary Wharf.
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Our lamb features on menus at the exclusive
Jumeirah hotels, which operate in locations
including Knightsbridge, Belgravia and
Mayfair, and at London’s Roka
Japanese restaurant.
Our Alliance Group New Zealand team has built
extensive relationships across the domestic
food sector, with Pure South products now
featuring on the menu in more than 500
leading restaurants.
We have continued to succeed in the Hong
Kong market, with demand for our premium
brands growing among high end restaurants
and hotels. We are also working with the food
service sector in Shanghai.
Alliance Group now has two representatives
permanently based in North America with a
very good position being established in the
burgeoning food service sector. This year,
we ran very successful chef engagement
sessions around premium brands across key
West Coast cities. Lamb is currently featured
on 25 per cent of casual dining menus and 63
per cent of white tablecloth menus, with a
resurgence of value cuts such as slow cooked
shoulder and shank items.

The business has provided us with direct access
to the highly attractive and growing global pet
food market. Sales in the sector are forecast
to reach up to $134 billion by 2022. Demand
for premium quality meat ingredients is rising
among pet owners.

Te Mana Lamb stifado, miso anbergine, pearl onions by John Skotidas
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PURE SOUTH HANDPICKED BEEF
We recognise that in order to provide the
maximum returns for our farmer shareholders,
we need to improve our performance in beef.
We have invested in the development of a
comprehensive premium beef offering, building
upon the systems developed through earlier
premium brand pilots.
We now provide a two-tier premium beef
offering, the Handpicked 55 Day Aged Beef
range and Pure South Handpicked Beef. The
premium Pure South Handpicked Beef supply
programme was launched this year. It follows
the success of the Handpicked range which
won international recognition, with gold and
bronze awards in the World Steak Challenge
in 2018 and 2019.
Like Handpicked 55 Day Aged Beef, Pure
South Handpicked Beef is breed agnostic.
It is all about flavour, so any shareholder can
participate. Selection is by specially-trained
graders from prime young cattle from any
breed. We offer a premium of 80 cents above
schedule for qualifying stock.
Consumers want attributes from a New
Zealand brand they can trust and proof of
origin systems that deliver transparency in
the food chain. The Pure South Handpicked
Beef programme links farmers to the needs
of consumers through a series of quantifiable
criteria that have been informed by
market insights.
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2019 PURE SOUTH
D I S C OV E RY S E R I E S

NEW ZEALAND FOOD BASKET
PA RT N E R S H I P W I T H A L I B A B A

For the second year running, Alliance Group
brought a delegation of leading international
chefs to New Zealand, to tour iconic farms and
premium restaurants.

In April, Alliance Group was among 17 leading
New Zealand food and beverage exporters,
which launched The New Zealand Food Basket
in a landmark partnership with e-commerce
giant Alibaba in China.

The Pure South Discovery Series in May once
again proved very successful. The goal is to
bring farmers and chefs together, to build
international awareness of New Zealand’s
unique cuisine and demonstrate how our lamb,
beef and venison is very much a product of the
unique environment it is raised in.
Expatriate New Zealander Paul Greening,
who is revolutionising the Asian food scene
in London, Hong Kong’s Anthony Burd and
up-and-coming Londoner John Skotidas,
were among the international chefs who
participated in the tour.
They met some of the farmers behind Alliance
Group’s products including Pure South lamb,
Handpicked 55 Day Aged Beef, Silere Alpine
Origin Merino, TE MANA L AMB and Pure
South venison. The farms on the tour included
Minaret Station and Mt Burke Station near
Wanaka, Mt Nicholas Station, Queenstown,
and Fairlight Station in northern Southland.
This was the perfect opportunity to highlight
our farmers’ free-range, grass-fed, natural
farming systems to key influencers who are
now sharing the story of our land, people and
environment to their peers and customers.

This exciting development has created a
single doorway that directly connects affluent
Chinese consumers with a basket of premium
New Zealand products that includes Pure South
lamb, beef and venison.
The initiative represented Alibaba’s first
Country Pavilion flagship store on the Tmall
Fresh e-commerce platform. Tmall, a Chineselanguage business-to-consumer online retail
venture operated by Alibaba Group, is the
largest retail platform of its kind in Asia with
almost 500 million users annually.
The development of The New Zealand Food
Basket and this pioneering partnership with
Tmall was facilitated and supported by
New Zealand Trade and Enterprise (NZTE).

Meat characteristics are measured, ensuring
a robust and objective process. Our graders
have undergone training to ensure robust,
accurate and consistent grading. We also
provide farmers with animal-specific feedback
to enable them to target stock and finishing
practices to premium markets.
The selection criteria provides customers
with the confidence that our product meets
specifications that ensure eating quality.
The system also provides a robust and objective
measure so that suppliers to the programme
can have confidence in the grading of
their livestock.
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Silere farmers Tracy and Andrew Paterson

SILERE ALPINE ORIGIN MERINO
Alliance Group has made strong progress with
our Silere Alpine Origin Merino brand. Over
the past few years we have been continuously
investing in the Silere programme.
Silere Alpine Origin Merino french racks, rump,
loins and small leg joints are now available
from leading British online supermarket Ocado.
Ocado has no stores, it does all home deliveries
from its warehouses. Online supermarkets are
the fastest growing supermarket category and
Ocado has been voted best online supermarket
in the UK every year since 2010.

46

S E C T I O N 8 : Growing our Brands to Transform our Business

ALLIANCE GROUP ANNUAL REP ORT 2019

TE MANA L AMB livestock

The range went on sale with Ocado in February.
A series of 90-second videos at Silere producing
farms are available to view alongside the
products on the Ocado website. The feedback
has been exceptional. This is a very good
example of how we, in partnership with Hilton
Food Solutions, can design a solution to meet
the demands of that market segment
and create category growth.

TE MANA LAMB
TE MANA L AMB is an important pillar in our
strategy to develop premium brands. It has
been developed through The Omega Lamb
Project, a Primary Growth Partnership involving
Alliance Group, the Ministry for Primary
Industries and Headwaters farmers group.
It is the culmination of a decade of research
and development, resulting in ewes and lambs
suited to thrive in hill country conditions and
with meat containing higher levels of good
polyunsaturated fats and omega-3 fatty acids,
with exceptional flavour and succulence.

TE MANA L AMB is in demand from the food
service sector and achieving a premium price.
It was also launched into the Shanghai market
in September. Our Alliance Asia team is
assessing market demand and pricing with a
select group of fine dining restaurant targets.
The exceptional feedback from chefs has led to
commitments from several top restaurants to
include the lamb on their menus and the signs
are very promising for fast market penetration.
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GLOBAL MARKETS
Achieving in a dynamic global market
There was a significant shift in world trading patterns, with strong demand
from China. During this year, we implemented a range of initiatives,
invested in identifying and developing new markets, worked on further brand
and capability development and focused on performance drivers.
A very strong understanding of consumers’
wants and needs in each marketplace is
essential to this. For instance, the North
American food consumer has a strong focus
on sustainability and is willing to pay a higher
price for a product that embodies those values.
The European customer is more flexitarian.
Four out of ten European customers now
have a plant-based diet, while others are
more flexitarian.
Asia is moving more towards meat protein.
We are now more selective in our criteria and
the ability to understand market consumer
behaviours allows us to grow our portfolio to
precisely meet those needs. We are working
with our partners and third parties to build
that knowledge.

GLOBAL PRICING
Lamb prices per kg have grown consistently
across the world over the past 12 months.
Beef demand was driven by China and wider
Asia due to African Swine Fever decimating the
pig herd and driving consumers to other forms
of protein. However, the ‘westernisation’ of
Asia is also a factor, with more US restaurant
chains in Asia creating increased beef sales.
Venison remains positive, but off a significant
peak. This has been a catalyst for finding new
utilisation for items and new opportunities for
markets, including China, unfolding outside of
the traditional European market season.
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INDIA

CHINA AND WIDER ASIA

India is a small but important market for
Alliance Group, with the country shortly
expected to overtake China as the world’s most
populated nation and positioned to become the
world’s third largest economy.

Chinese demand for high quality sources
of red meat has grown significantly over
the past year.

In August, chief executive David Surveyor,
chairman Murray Taggart and director Sarah
Brown undertook an in-market visit to India.
Our India partner, Quality New Zealand,
supplies New Zealand’s finest quality products
and services to the rapidly expanding Indian
market, with a specific focus on the food and
beverage, tourism and education sectors.
Shareholders include cricketing legends Sir
Richard Hadlee, Stephen Fleming, Daniel
Vettori and Brendon McCullum. Through this
partnership, Pure South lamb is now available
in more than 300 five-star hotels in India
and on the menu for first-class and business
passengers departing India on Air Canada,
British Airways, Singapore Airlines, United
Airlines and Air France.

There were a number of reasons for the resetting of the venison price, including last
year’s extended long hot European summer
which impacted on the usual game season
demand, resulting in carry-over frozen stock.

The impact of African Swine Fever (AFS) on
pig herds in Asia created major demand for
other forms of protein, particularly beef. It
is expected to take a number of years for the
Chinese pig herds to rebuild.
We have grown the supply of chilled beef to
China, which allows us to access some of the
channels we can earn high returns from. There
is a premium for chilled over frozen in China.
Chilled lamb is relatively new to the Chinese
market but offers a significant opportunity
as volumes continue to grow in food service
and retail.
Our products have gained exposure at high
profile events, including Pure South lamb on
the menu at the Best Asian Restaurant Awards
event in Singapore. The awards ceremony saw
300 guests, including leading figures from
Singapore’s food and beverage industry dining
on our lamb prepared by award-winning teams
from the Singapore Chefs Association, Bosque
D’or and Escoffier. The ceremony is part of
the Asian Masters, which celebrates Asian
gastronomy in Singapore. Pure South is the
key lamb sponsor for Asian Masters, as we
aim to build brand awareness and product
trial with Asian chefs.

This year was also very important in terms
of resetting the co-products sales function
for greater success. The traditional pelts and
hides markets have been challenging due to
Chinese tariffs. Coarse wool remained poor,
but fine wool has seen a resurgence. Offal has
continued to grow in demand for edible, as has
demand from the pharmaceutical industry for
blood products.

Brendon McCullum with Chef Adrian Moller at
The Leela Palace, New Delhi
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NORTH AMERIC A

UK AND EUROPE

The buoyant North American economy ensured
a strong performance across both retail and
food service channels this year. North America
boasts one of the most diverse populations
in the world and this creates a multitude
of market segments, consumer tastes and
behaviours, as well as opportunities for the
blending of cultures. Growing Hispanic and
Muslim communities are driving ovine demand.
Consumer confidence and improved disposable
income is encouraging restaurant dining.
Research also shows that 65 per cent of North
American consumers are yet to try lamb.

Despite the uncertainty surrounding Brexit,
the food service sector is very much a growing
part of our UK business. We are on track with
our expectations and confident about the
potential. We have increased capability in
our UK team and in our partners locally and
continue to grow the food service sector.
Our UK team hosted an event at New Zealand
House in London to mark the sales launch
of Silere Alpine Origin Merino on Ocado, the
UK’s leading online supermarket. Sir Jerry
Mateparae, New Zealand High Commissioner to
the UK, New Zealand Trade Commissioner Nick
Swallow, media, leading food bloggers and
members of the Craft Guild of Chefs
were among those who attended.

We have an established presence in North
America as a key shareholder in The Lamb
Company. The Lamb Company is the leading
lamb marketing and distribution company in
North America.
The Lamb Company ensures direct market
representation and distribution, with the
infrastructure to deliver premium fresh and
frozen branded lamb products throughout
North America. To support this growth and
continue to meet customer needs, The Lamb
Company is investing in increased processing
capabilities and developing a new plant
in Philadelphia.
We have two representatives based in North
America focusing strongly on growing our food
service market in California.
The New Zealand lamb profile is improving in
North America, due to effective marketing and
telling our story of lamb raised in the most
natural way.
Alliance Group lamb, venison and super
premium beef featured at an exclusive ‘On the
Grill’ poolside barbecue for VIP guests at the
New Zealand Consulate-General’s residence
in Los Angeles.
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The UK retail sector remains challenging
against a background of Brexit uncertainty,
weaker domestic sheepmeat prices and strong
global demand for New Zealand product. Our
main strategy is to consolidate our key account
chilled business and focus efforts into value
enhancing projects. These include proposals to
key grocery retailers to stock premium grassfed lamb ranges. We are working with our retail
and supply chain partners on projects including
increasing our capability to produce captech
product which extends chilled life over the
standard vacuum-packed format.
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We are just starting our journey with the food
service sector in Europe and are currently
working with customers to gain a strong
understanding of the fundamentals and
consumer requirements.
One highlight in Europe was our lamb featuring
at a New Zealand food and beverage showcase
event in Milan, Italy, hosted by New Zealand
Trade and Enterprise. Guests, including chefs
and media, experienced a ‘tasting tour’ of
New Zealand with well-known New Zealand
chef Peter Gordon and prominent Italian chef
Andrea Ribaldone.
MIDDLE EAST
Price remained steady in the Middle East and
we have continued to grow our chilled business
in the region across both the retail and food
service sectors, reflecting the increasing
number of Western style retail outlets and
ongoing developments in the hotel and
restaurant trade. However, the region has
been challenged by the demand and strong
prices from North Asia.
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NEW ZEALAND
New Zealand is a growing market for Alliance
Group. We have strengthened our sales and
marketing team in New Zealand and we are
building partnerships with the food service
sector. Our domestic sales have grown over
the past year and there was firm interest in
our premium portfolio. Our New Zealand team
has been very successful in engaging with
the food service sector with our products now
featuring on menus in more than 500 leading
restaurants. Strong gains have been achieved
through a partnership with Farmlands Mathias,
which has given Alliance Group greater
presence and penetration into the North
Island retail market.

High on the agenda with all UK supermarkets
is the need to reduce plastic usage within food
packaging. We are working closely with all
our key partners to achieve their goals, which
initially will entail changing consumer-ready
vacuum bags to fully recyclable material.
Our focus is to maintain service levels to
key clients whilst increasing value through
movement further up the supply chain. A key
element of this process is to utilise a new
value-added processing room in New Zealand
where we are looking to develop consumerready products.

53

S E C T I O N 1 0 : Manufacturing Excellence

ALLIANCE GROUP ANNUAL REP ORT 2019

S E C T I O N 1 0 : Manufacturing Excellence

ALLIANCE GROUP ANNUAL REP ORT 2019

Section 10

M A N U FA C T U R I N G
EXCELLENCE

54

55

S E C T I O N 1 0 : Manufacturing Excellence

ALLIANCE GROUP ANNUAL REP ORT 2019

S E C T I O N 1 0 : Manufacturing Excellence

ALLIANCE GROUP ANNUAL REP ORT 2019

M A N U FAC T U R I N G E XC E L L E N C E
Our goal is to be New Zealand’s leading food producer. Automation,
optimising production flow and building capability are key features
of our Manufacturing Excellence Programme.
Over the past four years, we have invested
upwards of $127m in the business. This year,
we have invested in a value-add facility at
our Lorneville plant, creating more value per
animal. We have also invested in increasing
operational efficiency at our Dannevirke and
Smithfield plants, addressing bottlenecks
and system constraints and improving
product flows.
The Manufacturing Excellence programme is
a key part of our goal to lift the performance
and productivity of all our plants and ensure
we remain the leader in New Zealand red
meat processing.
As a co-operative, we are focused on
maximising the value created for New Zealand
farmers. Driving efficiencies and lower costs
means we can pass these gains onto our
farmer shareholders.
FO CUS ON QUALIT Y
Our commitment to manufacturing excellence
has been reflected this year in our processing
plants achieving outstanding results in
regulatory audits.
Each of our seven processing plants achieved
scores of six through the Ministry for Primary
Industries’ Performance Based Verification
(PBV) programme, the highest rating from MPI.
Our Pukeuri plant also achieved a Blue Status
audit result from the leading UK supermarket
chain Tesco, the highest outcome that can
be achieved.
Our Pukeuri and Dannevirke plants received
an AA BRC audit result, while all other plants
achieved an A status. BRC is an internationally
recognised mark of food safety and quality.
Certification is achieved by undertaking
a third-party audit against standard
requirements set by an accredited
certification body.
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We regularly talk with our people about
quality and this is linked directly to our
values. We work across teams, share ideas
and information, drive to meet our goals
and objectives and always ask how we
can do things better.
TRAINING
Upskilling our people is essential to
manufacturing excellence. We have assessed
the training needs across our plants, to enable
us to design and implement the most effective
training modules. We have successfully
introduced a modular accredited training
programme focusing on building capability.
Development of the programme has
contributed to our success in providing training
in the Primary ITO New Zealand Certificate in
Meat Processing across all our plants.
The programme includes on-the-job-training,
front-line leadership training and trades
training, with the introduction of an Alliance
Group apprenticeship programme.
TRACKING PERFORMANCE
We introduced visual boards in every
department of every plant. These measure a
range of factors across safety, quality, cost
efficiency and delivery and they are reviewed
by a supervisor every two hours, providing real
time tracking of performance. If there is any
deviation, we can get on to it right away.
This enables the plant manager to survey
what is happening in every part of the plant,
every day. All results are reviewed at senior
management level on a daily and weekly
basis, providing a strategic snapshot of
how we are tracking.
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Our front-line leaders meet every week with
the senior plant management teams as a
collective to discuss their weekly performance
as well as discussing what needs to be done
to improve the following week’s performance.
This has resulted in yield and processing
improvements as well as enabled us to capture
more value per animal and significantly
extending our co-product collection.
ASSET MANAGEMENT
Improving the reliability of our assets is vital.
We rely on a number of technologies in the
precision processing, packaging and handling
of our products and it is important that these
are maintained to continuously deliver the
highest level of performance.
A clear, planned and proactive approach to
maintenance is critical in achieving quality as
well as production efficiency. Over the past 18
months, we have moved to a proactive plant
maintenance programme. Well maintained
assets are critical in achieving quality,
production efficiency and lower unit cost and
as a result we have improved our reliability by
three per cent year on year across all plants.
We have identified more than 30,000 assets
and have developed more than 12,500 planned
maintenance programmes. We have introduced
business intelligence software to enable key
performance indicator tracking as well as
providing comparative data with respect to
cost to maintain, failure rate and equipment
availability amongst others. These measures
are all part of our business strategy, to capture
greater market value and maximise
operational performance.
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NEW VENISON PLANT
In December 2018, Prime Minister, the
Rt. Hon Jacinda Ardern, officially opened
Alliance Group’s new $15.9 million venison
plant at Lorneville. The plant includes design
innovations, improved handling facilities,
enhanced configuration, a larger slaughter
board and wider boning room and a bigger
offal area than the former plant it replaced.
The investment reinforces our commitment
to the New Zealand deer industry and
ensures we have world-class modern facilities,
reflecting our position as a leading and
innovative processor.
DANNEVIRKE PLANT INVESTMENT
A $1.4m project at our Dannevirke plant,
carried out during the annual shutdown in
August, resulted in extra vacuum capacity,
product flow and conveyor reconfiguration
in further processing to allow an increase in
higher revenue cuts and introducing additional
downstream labelling and strapping equipment.
Alterations were also made to the slaughter
board to key areas, such as the gut stand, to
allow spacing between knife hands in high risk
areas, and modifications made to the slaughter
board chain to increase chain speed.
These improvements have enabled the
reconfiguration of product flows, with the
goals of a 20 per cent increase in efficiencies
through the plant during the peak of
the season.
We also expect this programme to result in
employment of about 35 additional staff
at the plant.
SMITHFIELD PLANT INVESTMENT
We also invested $1.2 million in an upgrade
of our Smithfield Plant, which included
installing additional vacuum packaging, coproducts processing technology and extending
the secondary processing area. Additional
conveyors were installed, which significantly
improved the product flow. The reconfiguration
of the secondary processing facility boosted
processing efficiencies at the plant by up to
20 per cent.
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GOVERNANCE
Board of Directors
GRAEME MILNE

M U R R AY TAG G A RT

JARED COLLIE

Supplier Representative
B.Com.Ag. (VFM)

Independent Director
BHSc.(Home Science)(Distinction)

People Committee
ERP Committee
Audit & Risk Committee

ERP Committee

People Committee (Chair)
ERP Committee

Murray was elected as a supplier
representative in 2010 and
appointed chairman in 2013.
He was also on the Alliance Group
board from 2002-2007. Murray
operates a 732 hectare sheep,
cattle and cropping farm in
North Canterbury.
He is a director of Ballance AgriNutrients Ltd, FMG Insurance Ltd
and a number of other companies
and organisations.

Jared was elected as a supplier
representative to the board in
2015. He operates a 1,400 hectare
sheep, cattle and dairy farm in
Central Southland and is also an
independent advisor for Arrow
Dairy Ltd, a director of Benmore
Downs Ltd, chairman of Platinum
Dairies Ltd, chairman of Kakapo
Farms Partnership, a member
of the Jeff Farm Management
Board, and a facilitator for the
Takitimu Discussion Group.

RUSSELL DRUMMOND

Supplier Representative

Russell was elected as a
supplier representative in 2014.
He is a director of RG & JM
Drummond Farms Ltd, farming
sheep and cattle on 3,000
hectares at Avondale and Five
Rivers, Southland. Russell is
also a member of the Takitimu
Discussion Group, Upper
Aparima Catchment Group
and ACE Aparima Community
& Environment.
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SAR AH BROWN

Chairman and Supplier Representative
B.Agr.Sc.

Sarah was appointed to the
Alliance Group board in March
2018. She holds a Bachelor of
Home Science degree from the
University of Otago, and lives and
works on a sheep and beef farm
in Manawatu. Sarah has held a
number of senior management
positions in marketing and
consumer insights with highprofile companies including Lion
Nathan and Colmar Brunton.
Sarah has considerable expertise
in marketing in a broad range
of industries internationally and
has assisted Australian Pork,
Coca-Cola Amatil, Diageo and
Goodman Fielder International.
She has worked across the globe
including Australia, China,
Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines,
Thailand, Korea, Japan, India,
Malaysia and New Zealand. Sarah
is a director of Sarah Brown and
Associates Ltd and a trustee of
Wanganui Collegiate School —
College Board of Trustees.

DON MORRISON

Independent Director
B.Tech. (Biotech) 1 st class Hons
CFinstD
ONZM

Supplier Representative
B.Com.Ag.

People Committee
Audit & Risk Committee

Don was elected as a supplier
representative in 2013. He is a
director of DG & BC Morrison
Ltd, farming sheep and cattle on
600 hectares at Waikaka Valley,
Southland. He is also a director
of Pure Taste New Zealand (NZ)
Ltd, Ahika Journeys Ltd, chairman
of W9 and a member of the Alpha
Sheep Genetics Group.

Graeme was appointed as an
independent director in April 2013.
He is a partner in GR & JA Milne,
director of Nyriad Ltd, Elviti
Holdings Ltd and subsidiaries,
chairman of PF Olsen Group Ltd
and subsidiaries, Pro-Form Ltd
Advisory Board, Rimanui Farms
Ltd Advisory Board, Synlait
Milk Ltd, and subsidiaries and
Terracare Fertilisers Ltd. He is a
Council member of the University
of Waikato and a trustee of
Rockhaven Trust.

Audit & Risk Committee

DAWN SANGSTER

Supplier Representative
B.Com.Ag
CMinstD

PETER SCHUYT

Independent Director
B.Com.
CFinstD

ERP Committee (Chair)
Audit & Risk Committee (Chair)

Peter was appointed as
independent director in December
2017. Peter is an experienced
director across a range of New
Zealand businesses including
Tatua Co-operative Dairy
Company, TSB Bank Ltd and
Foodstuffs North Island Ltd. He
has held senior executive roles
at the New Zealand Dairy Board,
Fonterra and the New Zealand
Post Group, and is a Chartered
Fellow of the New Zealand
Institute of Directors, director of
Ahikouka Holdings Ltd, DairyNZ
Inc, Tax Management NZ Ltd,
chairman of Dairy Investment
Fund Ltd and a member of the
Department of Corrections
Audit & Risk Committee.

Audit & Risk Committee

JASON MILLER

Supplier Representative

Jason was elected as a supplier
representative in 2015. He was
also a director on the Alliance
Group board from 2007-2013.
Jason operates 800 hectares of
sheep and cattle farmland in
Southdown, Southland.

Dawn was elected as a supplier
representative in 2011. She
is a director of GlenAyr Ltd,
farming sheep and beef on 2,870
hectares in Central Otago. She
is a facilitator for the Red Meat
Profit Partnership-funded AgriWomen’s Development Trust’s
Understanding Your Farming
Business course, chair of
Community Trust of Maniototo
and director of Farmlands Cooperative Society Ltd.
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Executive Leadership Team

SHANE KINGSTON

DAV I D S U RV E YO R

Chief Executive

David Surveyor was appointed Chief Executive in
2015. He is Chairman of Alliance Group (NZ) Ltd,
the UK subsidiary, a director of The Lamb Company
(North America), and a member of the Meat Industry
Association Council. He was previously Executive
General Manager of Laminex, a subsidiary of
Fletcher Building and has also held roles with BHP in
Australia and as President of Bluescope Lysaght in
Malaysia. David has a Bachelor of Economics from
the University of Western Australia, a Graduate
Diploma in Applied Finance and Investment from
the Securities Institute of Australia and completed
an Advanced Management Programme at Wharton
Business School at the University of Pennsylvania.

DANNY HAILES

Company Secretary and Acting General Manager Livestock
and Shareholder Services

Danny was appointed Company Secretary in 2013. He
has been with the company since 1993. His previous
roles at Alliance Group include Group Legal Counsel,
Plant Manager Dannevirke, Plant Manager Pukeuri,
Acting Plant Manager Mataura and General Manager
Commercial. He has an honours degree in Law from
the University of Otago, is a barrister and solicitor
of the High Court of New Zealand and a graduate of
the Advanced Management Programme at Harvard
Business School in Boston, USA. Danny is a member
of the board of Deer Industry New Zealand, a director
of DEEResearch Ltd and company secretary of
Alliance Group (NZ) Ltd and UK subsidiaries.

Chief Financial Officer

Shane joined Alliance Group as General Manager
Sales in 2018. He has significant sales leadership
experience, most recently at Diageo, a global leader
in beverage and consumer products company,
where he was Global Commercial Performance
Director — Global Sales, based in Singapore. He
has also held both sales management and sales
strategy roles within Diageo Australia, being part of
the company’s leadership team. His earlier career
includes sales roles with leading consumer companies
GlaxoSmithKline and Britvic in Europe. Shane holds a
Bachelor of Science in Food Business from University
College Cork.

Cameron was appointed Chief Financial Officer
in June 2016. He has significant experience in
leading business transformation and organisational
performance improvement. Cameron has held
a number of senior financial and commercial
leadership roles with large listed companies and
co-operatives in both the UK and New Zealand.
This includes Chief Financial Officer/General
Manager Corporate Services for Brand Developers
Ltd, Australasia’s leading Direct Response Television
company, and as Commercial Finance Manager Sales
and Marketing for Fonterra. He has a Bachelor of
Management Studies, Economics and Finance from
the University of Waikato.

CHRIS SELBIE

G I J S FA B E R

NIGEL JONES

General Manager Supply Chain

General Manager Strategy

Gijs was appointed General Manager Supply Chain
in October 2017 and is leading and championing
the development of an integrated end-to-end
supply chain function including sales and operation
planning, production planning, warehousing
and inbound and outbound distribution. Gijs has
more than 15 years of executive and 26 years of
professional experience in supply chain, operations
and IT, in FMCG, retail and manufacturing, serving
multinational corporates and major consulting
clients in Europe and Australasia. This has included
leading supply chain teams for several major
New Zealand organisations, including Foodstuffs,
Farmers Trading Company and Carter Holt Harvey.

Nigel was appointed General Manager Strategy in
September 2015 after 16 years in the dairy industry,
including General Manager roles in strategy,
supply chain and logistics with Fonterra. Nigel has
significant experience in business strategy and
planning, marketing, key account management,
procurement, supply chain and logistics and has
worked in a range of international markets. He has
Bachelor of Business Degrees in Accountancy and
Finance, a Master of Science in Supply Chain
and Logistics (Cranfield University, UK) and
completed an executive programme in Strategy
at Stanford University.

C AMERON MATHE WS ON

General Manager Sales

WILLIE WIESE

General Manager People and Safety

General Manager Manufacturing

Chris was appointed General Manager People
and Safety in July 2015. Chris has significant
experience in developing and implementing HR and
performance improvement strategies across a range
of organisations and industries.

Willie was appointed General Manager Manufacturing
in December 2017 and has led significant
manufacturing operations in both Australia and
South Africa. He has extensive experience in the
implementation of strategies to deliver performance
improvements in complex manufacturing operations.
Willie has a Masters degree in Electrical Engineering,
Engineering Science and Business Administration,
and Supply Chain and Business, from the University
of the Witwatersrand, Johannesburg.

He is strongly committed to safety leadership and
strengthening workplace safety culture. He has a
commerce degree from the University of Otago and
his career includes senior human resources leadership
roles in various multinational companies including
most recently as General Manager Human Resources
for Holcim New Zealand.

Gijs has an MBA in Logistics and Supply Chain
Management from Erasmus University, Rotterdam,
along with a Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering
from Delft University of Technology.
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Corporate Governance

AUDIT AND RISK COMMIT TEE

Alliance Group is a co-operative company owned by approximately 4,000
farmers who supply livestock to the company for processing and sale of the
resulting meat and co-products to international markets.
The company’s shares are not listed on any stock exchange.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The constitution provides that there shall be
not more than ten directors of the company
at any time, of which not less than six and
not more than eight shall be directors elected
by the shareholders. One-third of the elected
directors retire by rotation each year and may
stand for re-election. The directors who retire
each year are those who have been longest in
office since their last election.
Provided that the total number of directors
does not exceed ten, the board may from
time to time appoint up to four directors who,
in the opinion of the board, are capable of
rendering services in relation to the affairs of
the company. These directors are appointed
for a term of up to three years and may be
re-appointed for subsequent terms of up to
three years at a time. The board exercises the
discretion to appoint independent directors to
the board to ensure that the board comprises
directors with an appropriate range of skills
and experience.
The board currently comprises nine directors of
which three are independent directors and six
are elected directors, one of whom is appointed
chairman on an annual basis.
This year the board reviewed the constitution
of the company and identified several
improvements to be made and recommended
to shareholders for approval. These proposed
changes to the constitution are detailed along
with explanatory notes in the formal Notice
of Annual Meeting of Shareholders set out in a
separate document sent to shareholders and on
the company’s website (www.alliance.co.nz).
The board has adopted a charter which sets out
the role and responsibilities of the board and
formalises process and practice. A copy of the
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charter and the constitution may be viewed on
the company’s website (www.alliance.co.nz).
BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
The board has statutory responsibility for the
affairs and activities of the company. The
responsibility for the day-to-day operation and
administration of the company is delegated by
the board to the chief executive. The long-term
strategic direction of the company, the annual
business plan and capital expenditure budget
are approved by the board. The board also
approves expenditure on specific projects that
are outside normally delegated authorities and
reviews operational performance against the
business plan objectives.
The board ensures the affairs of the company
adhere to all regulatory obligations, that high
ethical standards are maintained and that the
company is a responsible corporate citizen.
Particular emphasis is placed on the health
and safety of employees and the protection
and sustainable use of the environment.
All directors register and formally record
any conflicts of interest.
Succession planning is undertaken for
both directors and management to ensure
appropriate skill sets are available to the
company on an ongoing basis.
BOARD MEETINGS
Ten board meetings are scheduled each
year with extra meetings held if required.
Comprehensive management reports are
provided to directors prior to board meetings
being held. The board encourages the
chief executive to bring to board meetings
employees who can provide additional insight
into the matters being discussed because of
direct involvement in those matters.

The Audit and Risk Committee comprises five
directors who meet three times a year. The
committee operates under terms of reference
approved by the board and is required to
establish a framework of internal control
mechanisms and ethical standards to ensure
proper management of the company’s affairs.
The committee is responsible for ensuring
that arrangements are in place to adequately
manage areas of significant business risk.
The committee reviews the annual external
audit plan and the report of the auditors
following completion of the audit. It assists
the board to meet its accounting and reporting
responsibilities under the Companies Act 1993
and related legislation. The committee is also
responsible for the internal audit plan and
reviews all internal audit reports.
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create a Committee of the Board, reporting to the
full Board to achieve this most effectively.

DIRECTOR MEE TING AT TENDANCE
The table below reports attendance of directors
at board and board committee meetings during
the year ended 30 September 2019.
Board

Audit & Risk
Committee

ERP
Committee

People
Committee

Number of
Meetings

10

3

4

4

M J Taggart

10

3

4

4

S M Brown

10

2*

3

3*

J G Collie

10

3*

4

3*

R G Drummond

10

2*

2*

3*

J A Miller

10

2*

2*

3*

G R Milne

10

3

-

4

D G Morrison

9

3

2*

3*

H D Sangster

10

3

2*

3*

P M Schuyt

10

3

4

3*

*Non-committee member in attendance. In addition to
the above board meetings held in person, the board also

PEOPLE COMMITTEE

met on five occasions by telephone conference.

The People Committee (previously known as the
Remuneration and Nominations Committee)
comprises up to five directors meeting two or
more times a year. The committee operates
under terms of reference approved by the
board. The committee provides oversight of
the people strategy of the company, assists
the board on remuneration and performance
management policies and procedures for the
company and specifically the appointment,
remuneration, performance goals and
reviews of the chief executive and senior
management. The committee also participates
in annual succession planning reviews and
selection processes as required for key senior
positions, and assists with the appointment of
independent directors, the review of the board
and board remuneration.

COMMUNIC ATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS
Alliance Group makes every effort to
keep shareholders informed of all major
developments affecting their company.
Information is communicated to shareholders
through the Alliance Group website, annual
report, Product Disclosure Statement, regular
company newsletters and emails including
“Brief Bites”. Each year a series of meetings
is held throughout the company’s stock
catchment areas at which the chairman and
chief executive update shareholders on issues
affecting the company and the industry. These
meetings also provide the opportunity to receive
and discuss feedback on issues important
to shareholders. The board welcomes full
participation of shareholders at these meetings.

ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PL ANNING
(ERP) COMMITTEE
The ERP committee comprises four directors
meeting several times a year. The Committee
has been formed to provide an additional level of
Board engagement in assessing the progress, risks
and key decisions associated with the ERP project.
The Board recognises that, over a four year
implementation programme of a critical business
initiative, the Board must have a continuing
monitoring and assessment role, alongside its
key decision making authority, and has elected to
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For the year ended 30 September 2019

OUR FINANCIAL REVIEW

The income earned and expenses incurred by Alliance Group

71

74

Income Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements

71

90

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Changes in Equit y

72

92

Statement of Financial Position

About This Repor t

73
Statement of Cash Flows

GROUP
Note
Revenue
Cost of sales

A1.1

Gross profit
Other operating income
Sales and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Restructuring costs
Operating result
Financial income
Financial expenses

Distribution

2018
$000

1,712,937
(1,635,961)

1,715,460
(1,654,767)

76,976

60,693

A1.1

2,755
(7,884)
(42,113)
(1,974)
(260)
27,500

3,496
(8,625)
(39,380)
(1,754)
(79)
14,351

A2
A2

134
(9,746)

155
(8,034)

(9,612)

(7,879)

2,883
(34)
20,737
(6,814)
13,923

1,482
2,402
10,356
(3,728)
6,628

Net financing costs
Equity accounted earnings
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Profit before tax and distribution
Income tax expense
Profit before distribution

2019
$000

E2

A4
A1.2

Profit after tax and distribution

(8,953)
4,970

(26)
6,602

STAT E M E N T O F C O M P R E H E N S I V E I N C O M E
For the year ended 30 September 2019
Items of income and expenditure that are not recognised in the income statement and hence taken to
reserves in equity
GROUP
2019

2018

$000

$000

Fair value changes in derivatives:
recognised in cash flow hedge reserve
transferred and recognised in income statement

(350)
9
(341)

tax effect on cash flow hedge reserve
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Profit after tax for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

(341)
215
(126)
4,970
4,844

(9)
278
269
(78)
191
2,594
2,785
6,602
9,387

The notes to the Group financial statements form an integral par t of these financial statements.
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STAT E M E N T O F F I N A N C I A L P O S I T I O N

STAT E M E N T S O F C A S H F L O W S

As at 30 September 2019

For the year ended 30 September 2019

A summary of the Alliance Group assets and liabilities at the end of the financial year

Cash generated and used by the Alliance Group during the financial year

GROUP
Note

GROUP

2019

2018

$000

$000

Equity
Share capital
Reserves
Retained earnings

C2
C3

88,738
(12,268)
263,852

86,339
(12,142)
258,876

Total equity

F4

340,322

333,073

C4
C6

8,300
85,139
14,671
21,400
2,575
235

12,455
81,609
13,157
12,100
1,270
171

132,320

120,762

63,500
4,865

60,000
5,670

68,365

65,670

Total liabilities

200,685

186,432

Total liabilities and equity

541,007

519,505

1,391
117,975
105,150
632

2,587
116,593
111,361
604

225,148

231,145

49,432
15,438
124
236,126
14,739

28,927
20,907
100
231,562
6,864

Total non-current assets

315,859

288,360

Total assets

541,007

519,505

Liabilities
Bank overdraft
Trade and other payables
Employee benefits
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Financial liabilities – derivatives
Income tax payable

C7

Total current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Employee benefits

C7

Total non-current liabilities

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Financial assets – derivatives

C4
C5
B2

Total current assets
Investments in equity accounted investees
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

E2
A4
B1
B3

2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Interest received
Dividends received
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Interest paid
Taxes paid
Net cash flow from operating activities

$000
1,713,324
134
1,200
(1,663,807)
(9,746)
(681)
40,424

$000
1,751,147
155
(1,769,639)
(8,034)
(798)
(27,169)

Cash flows from investing activities
Repayment of investment
Purchase of investments
Purchase of intangibles
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

2,570
(18,885)
(6,539)
12

3,375
(34)
(2,678)
4,954

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

(26,959)

(33,426)

Net cash flow from investing activities

(49,801)

(27,809)

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in term debt
Issue of share capital
Redemption of share capital
Net cash flow from financing activities

12,800
3,106
(3,774)
12,132

53,100
3,424
(2,923)
53,601

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents
Opening cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held
Closing cash and cash equivalents

2,755
(9,868)
204
(6,909)

(1,377)
(7,854)
(637)
(9,868)

4,970

6,602

20,860
5,469
8,953
935
(2,665)
(244)
34
152
(2,883)
6
29
(186)
30,460

19,487
2,639
26
(600)
(3,415)
2,015
(2,402)
669
(1,482)
281
(238)
104
17,084

Reconciliation of profit to cash surplus from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for items not involving cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation
Decrease in deferred tax
Distribution provided for
Fair value of financial derivatives
Non-cash rebate from associates
Effect of exchange rate movement on working capital
Gain on sale
Accounts receivable and payable movements for investing and financing activities
Earnings from associates
Movement in provision for doubtful debts
Movement in stock provision
Other non cash items

Movement in working capital items
Cash flow from operating Activities

The notes to the Group financial statements form an integral par t of these financial statements.
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2018

4,994

(50,855)

40,424

(27,169)

The notes to the Group financial statements form an integral par t of these financial statements.
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FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES
GROUP

IN THIS SECTION
This section explains the financial performance of Alliance providing additional information about individual items
in the income statement, including:
– a ccounting policies, judgements and estimates that are relevant for understanding items recognised in
the income statement.
– a nalysis of Alliance’s performance for the year by reference to key areas including: revenue, payments to
our farmers, expenses and taxation.
A1:

C R E AT I N G W E A LT H A N D A D D I N G VA LU E TO O U R FA R M E R S

A1.1

REVENUE

2019

2018

$000

$000

Interest from bank
Financial income
Interest paid on loans & borrowings
Financial expenses

134
134
9,746
9,746

155
155
8,034
8,034

Net finance costs

9,612

7,879

MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION
Interest income is recognised as it accrues.
GROUP

Financial expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings including related fees and losses on interest

2019

2018

Revenue
Other operating income

$000
1,712,937
2,755

$000
1,715,460
3,496

Total income

1,715,692

1,718,956

rate hedging instruments.
A3

PERSONNEL EXPENSES
GROUP
2019

REVENUE MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be
received in exchange for transferring those goods or services. The measurement is based on the transaction
price, net of commissions, volume rebate, and excludes amounts incurred on behalf of the customer.

2018

Wages and salaries
Employer contribution to defined contribution plans
Increase / (decrease) in liability for long service leave

$000
249,456
3,759
(530)

$000
239,059
3,589
195

Total personnel expenses

252,685

242,843

In respect of export sales, the largest category of sales, the group has determined that there are two
performance obligations. The group is obligated under the contract to supply specified goods and also to
arrange and pay for shipping and insurance on behalf of the customer. Control of goods passes, and the

MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION

service of arranging shipping and insurance is complete, at the point when the goods have been loaded

Provision is made for benefits owing to employees in respect of services rendered. Provisions are recognised

onto the first point of carriage, to be delivered to the customer’s chosen destination. Revenue is recognised

when it is probable they will be settled and can be measured reliably.

at this point in time.

A4

Other operating income materially consists of rebates from associates.

TA X ATION
GROUP

I M PA C T O F T R A N S I T I O N T O N Z I F R S 1 5
As described in note F6, NZ IFRS 15 was effective 1 October 2018. This resulted in changes to the

2018

$000

$000

Revenue from contracts with customers under NZ IAS 18
Adjustment on application of NZ IFRS 15

$000
1,767,959
(52,499)

Recognised in the income statement
Current tax expense
Current income tax expense
Adjustments for prior years
Unutilised prior year tax credits
Deferred tax expense

5,118
29
607
1,060

2,327
1,254
736
(589)

Revenue from contracts with customers under NZ IFRS 15

1,715,460

Total income tax expense in income statement

6,814

3,728

Income tax expense calculation
Net profit before tax for the year

11,784

10,330

Income tax using the company’s tax rate (28%)

3,300

2,892

measurement of revenue from contracts with customers on transition from NZ IAS 18 to NZ IFRS 15, as
disclosed below.
2018

A1.2

2019

D I S T R I B U T I O N PAYA B L E
GROUP
Note

$000
8,953
8,953
(3,073)

Distribution per income statement*
plus over provided from last year
Qualifying payout
Transfer to share issues pending
Total payable at end of year

2019

C6

5,880

Distributions $/head
2018
$000
26
(26)
-

FY19 FY18

Non assessable income
Non deductible expenses

Lamb
Ewes
Cattle

1.50
0.50
8.00

-

Tax effect of post-tax equity accounted earnings

Calves

0.50

-

Income tax expense

Deer

5.00

-

Tax effect of lower tax for overseas subsidiary
Under provided in prior years

(875)
2,814

(683)
155

948

59

(347)

(204)

974

1,509

6,814

3,728

*The 2019 distribution will be fully imputed.
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MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION
Income tax expense is the income tax assessed on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit before tax reported in the income statement as it excludes items of income and expense that are
taxable or deductible in future years (i.e. deferred tax) and also excludes items that will never be taxable
or deductible. Income tax expense components are current income tax and deferred tax.
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B . O P E R AT I N G A S S E T S
IN THIS SECTION
This section shows the assets Alliance Group uses in the processing of red meat products supplied by our New
Zealand farmers in order to generate operating revenues. Key revenue generating assets include:

IMPUTATION CREDIT S

–	Property, plant and equipment

As at balance date imputation credits available for use in subsequent periods totalled $34.9 million

–

Inventories

(2018: $34.5 million).

–

Intangible assets

DEFERRED TA X
Movement in temporary differences

Opening

Recognised

Recognised

Closing

during the year

balance

in income

in equity

balance

$000

$000

ALLIANCE GROUP ANNUAL REP ORT 2019

$000

B1

P R O P E RT Y, P L A N T A N D E Q U I P M E N T

Land

$000

Buildings

Plant and
equipment

Work in
progress

Total

2018

Group

Property, plant and equipment

Cost
Balance at 1 October 2017
Transfers from capital work-in-progress
Additions
Disposals
Effect of movements in exchange rates

26,122
(419)
-

130,598
1,396
18
(5,316)
-

428,254
18,059
307
(8,206)
17

21,811
(19,385)
32,285
-

606,785
32,610
(13,941)
17

Balance at 30 September 2018

25,703

126,626

438,431

34,711

625,471

Balance at 1 October 2018

625,471

Inventories
Employee benefits
Other items
Derivatives
Tax loss carry forward

2019
Property, plant and equipment
Inventories
Employee benefits
Other items
Derivatives
Tax loss carry forward

(442)

(68)

-

491
4,138
1,673
78
17,608

57
(66)
500
(2,984)

(78)
-

548
4,072
2,173
14,624

23,546

(2,561)

(78)

20,907

(510)
548
4,072
2,173
14,624

(137)
(57)
(338)
338
(5,275)

-

20,907

(5,469)

-

(510)

(647)
491
3,734
2,511
9,349

$000

$000

$000

$000

25,703

126,626

438,431

34,711

Transfers from capital work-in-progress

525

11,292

30,725

(42,542)

Additions
Disposals
Effect of movements in exchange rates

-

Balance at 30 September 2019

26,228

(11)
-

107
(7,007)
(5)

137,907

462,251

24,444
16,613

$000

24,551
(7,018)
(5)
642,999

123
65
-

78,843
2,243
(4,622)

307,445
16,449
(6,767)
5

124
-

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available to

Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 October 2017
Depreciation
Provision for writedown
Disposals
Effect of movements in exchange rates

386,411
18,881
(11,389)
5

use the asset. This is reviewed at each balance date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

Balance at 30 September 2018

188

76,464

317,132

124

393,908

Balance at 1 October 2018
Depreciation
Provision for writedown
Disposals
Effect of movements in exchange rates

188
80
-

76,464
2,351
(11)
-

317,132
17,633
(6,961)
(3)

124
(124)
-

393,908
19,940
(6,972)
(3)

Balance at 30 September 2019

268

78,804

327,801

-

406,873

Net book value
Balance at 1 October 2017
Balance at 30 September 2018
Balance at 30 September 2019

25,999
25,515
25,960

51,755
50,162
59,103

120,809
121,299
134,450

21,811
34,587
16,613

220,374
231,563
236,126

15,438

KEY JUDGEMENT:

that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to utilise the asset.
MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION
Deferred tax is income tax that is expected to be payable or recoverable in the future as a result of the
unwinding of temporary differences. These arise from differences in the recognition of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting and for the filing of income tax returns. Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary
differences, other than those arising from goodwill and the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction (other than in a business combination) that affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit
or loss.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when a liability is settled
or an asset realised, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
balance date.
All tax losses are available to the New Zealand Parent Company.
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MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION
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KEY JUDGEMENT

Owned assets

Alliance Group determines the sale values used to calculate the cost of inventory by reference to:

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

–	contract sale prices, or

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the purchase of the asset. The cost of self-

–

for uncontracted inventory, the future anticipated realisable value.

constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing

B3

INTANGIBLE A SSE T S

the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the

Resource
consents

functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.
Impairment
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date. If an indicator

Net book value at 30 September 2018
Additions
Amortisation expenses

$000
768
733
(35)

$000

Goodwill

Work in
progress

Total

6,864
8,795
(920)

$000

$000

1,036
1,110
(885)

692
-

4,368
6,952
-

1,261

692

11,320

14,739

Net book value at 30 September 2019

1,466

Disposals

Cost
Less accumulated amortisation

1,501
(35)

5,915
(4,654)

692
-

11,320
-

19,428
(4,689)

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is

Net book value at 30 September 2019

1,501

1,261

692

11,320

14,739

of impairment exists, then the recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION

recognised in the income statement.

Costs incurred in obtaining resource consents for Alliance Group’s processing sites are capitalised and

Depreciation
Depreciation of property plant and equipment assets is calculated on a straight-line or diminishing value
basis. This allocates the cost of an asset, less any residual values (estimated value at time of disposal) over
the over the estimated remaining useful life of the asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their useful lives. Land is not depreciated.

amortised from the granting of the consent on a straight line basis for the period of the consent. This
represents a change in policy from prior years where costs incurred in obtaining resource consents were
expensed as they were incurred. Resource consents are granted for periods 5-35 years.
Software
Costs associated with acquiring and developing software are capitalised at cost and amortised over the
life of the assets. The costs of internally generated software comprises all directly attributable costs

KEY JUDGEMENT

necessary to create, produce, and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner

Alliance Group makes estimates of the remaining useful lives of assets, which are as follows:

intended by management.

–	Buildings 15-50 years

The useful life of software is 2–15 years.

–

Goodwill

Plant and equipment 4-25 years

Goodwill that arises upon an acquisition is included in intangible assets. Following initial recognition,

The residual value and useful lives are reviewed and if appropriate adjusted, at each reporting date.
B2

Group

Software

goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

INVENTORIES
GROUP
2019
Raw materials and consumables
Livestock
Trading stocks
Total inventories

2018

$000
12,432
1,219
91,499

$000
10,402
355
100,604

105,150

111,361

MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost: Consistent with other meat processors, Alliance Group utilises the “retail method”, in accordance
with NZ IAS 2 - Inventory, to value the cost of inventory. Under the “retail method”, the cost of
inventory is ascertained by deducting from sales value an estimated profit margin expected to be
earned on the future sale of inventory.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Livestock is valued at fair value.
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R E S E RV E S
Group

IN THIS SECTION

2019

This section explains how Alliance Group manages its capital structure and working capital along with the various
funding sources.
C1

C APITAL MANAGEMENT
Alliance Group’s capital includes share capital, reserves and retained earnings.
The Board’s objective when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base to ensure Alliance Group

2018

$000

$000

Foreign currency translation
Cash flow hedge

(11,917)
(351)

(12,132)
(10)

Reserves

(12,268)

(12,142)

MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION

are able to undertake future growth opportunities and maximise the return to shareholders. The board

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

considers a strong capital base is necessary to protect the company from volatility and changes in capital

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the

and operating market conditions.

translation of the financial statements of foreign operations as well as from the translation of financial

The board monitors forecast capital inflows and outflows, and the level of shareholding relative to

instruments that hedge the company’s net investment in a foreign subsidiary.

shareholders’ supply to ensure that the company retains a strong capital base, with a key reference point

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

being the shareholders equity ratio.

The cash flow hedge reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value
2019

C2

2018

2017

of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet been settled.

2016

$000

$000

$000

$000

Total equity
Total assets

340,322
541,007

333,073
519,505

323,159
454,989

301,828
427,800

Equity ratio

62.9%

64.1%

71.0%

70.6%

C4

Group

SHARE C APITAL
Group
Co-operative shares

C A S H A N D C A S H EQ U I VA L E N T S

2018

$000

$000

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank credit facilities

1,391
(8,300)

2,587
(12,455)

Net cash and cash equivalents

(6,909)

(9,868)

2019

2018

$000

$000

76,469

76,328

Shares allotted during the year

12,581

3,064

2019

2018

Shares surrendered during the year

(3,774)

(2,923)

$000

$000

Shares on issue at 30 September

85,276

76,469

2019

2018

Trade receivables – net of impairment
Prepayments
Receivables from related parties

94,249
3,692
20,034

103,543
2,214
10,836

$000

$000

Total receivables

117,975

116,593

89,276
3,462
88,738

76,469
9,870
86,339

295

301

Shares on issue at 1 October

Share capital

Shares issued at 30 September
Share issue pending
Share capital

C5

TR A D E A N D OTH E R R ECE I VA B L E S
Group

Impairment losses included in trade receivables
The status of trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:
Group Trade receivables

All co-operative shares are fully paid up.
As at 30 September 2019 there was share issues pending of 3.462 million shares (2018: 9.870 million shares).
These shares are predominantly to be issued and paid from the distribution in December 2019.
All shares have equal voting rights and shareholders are entitled to one vote per share. The maximum
individual shareholding is 1.6 million shares. Upon winding up, shares rank equally with regard to the
company’s residual assets.
Shares are issued and surrendered at their nominal value under the company’s constitution and the Cooperative Companies Act 1996. Co-operative shares may be surrendered where shareholders have not
transacted with the company for five years or do not have the capacity to be a transacting shareholder.
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2019

Not yet due

1-30 days
overdue

> 30 days
overdue

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

81,568

20,192

2,084

103,844

-

-

Net receivable

81,568

20,192

1,783

2019
Gross receivable
Impairment

82,097
-

10,898
-

1,549
(295)

94,544
(295)

Net receivable

82,097

10,898

1,254

94,249

2018
Gross receivable
Impairment

(301)

(301)
103,543
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D. F I N A N C I A L I N ST RU M E N T S U S E D T O M A N AG E R I S K

MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION
Trade receivables are measured on initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost.

IN THIS SECTION

Receivables are reviewed on an individual basis to determine whether any amounts are unrecoverable and a

This section explains the financial risks that the Alliance Group faces and how these risks are managed.

specific provision is made. The provision for doubtful debts is the estimated amount of the receivable that

This includes reviewing the hedging instruments used to manage risk.

is not expected to be paid. Debts known to be uncollectible are written off as bad debts to the profit and
loss immediately.

D1

MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK

In assessing the collectability of receivables Alliance Group considers the customers credit history and
historical recovery performance and trends.
C6

Alliance Group is subject to a variety of financial risks relating to its operations that are managed by the
Group’s Treasury Policy. This policy provides guidance to management on minimising the exposure to these

T R A D E A N D O T H E R PAYA B L E S

risks and the use of derivative financial instruments. Alliance Group is exposed to foreign currency, interest
rate, credit and liquidity risks which arise during the normal course of business. The group manages

Group
2019

Trade payables and accrued expenses
Distribution payable

A1.2

commodity risk through negotiated supply contracts.

2018

$000

$000

79,259
5,880

81,609
-

Credit risk

85,139

81,609

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its financial

MANAGEMENT OF ALLIANCE GROUP’S KEY FINANCIAL RISKS

obligations.
MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION

C7

Exposure to credit risk primarily arises in relation to trade debtors. Refer to Note C5 for the status of

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the entity becomes obliged to make future

trade receivables. This risk is managed through a credit approval process and on-going monitoring being

payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services. No interest is charged on the trade payables.

undertaken. Offshore debtor credit risk is also partially managed by the use of confirmed letters of credit

The entity has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid with in the

from reputable banks. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk. The carrying amount of

credit timeframe.

financial assets represents the group’s maximum credit exposure.

INTERE ST-BE ARING LOANS AND B ORROWINGS

A provision for impairment of receivables is established using the expected credit losses model, which
is based on forward-looking analysis which considers historical provisioning rates and relevant macro-

Group

economic factors.

2019

2018

$000

$000

Secured bank loans – current

21,400

12,100

Secured bank loans – non-current

63,500

60,000

84,900

72,100

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the group’s ability to meet its contractual obligations as they fall due.
In general, the group generates sufficient cash flows from its operating activities to meet its obligations
arising from its financial liabilities and maintains adequate banking facilities to cover potential shortfalls.
The Group is required to disclose the expected timings of cash outflows for each of its financial liabilities.
The amounts in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest), so will

MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION

not always reconcile to the amount disclosed on the statement of financial position.

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost (using the effective interest method). Fees for establishing new borrowings

Balance Contractual
sheet
cash flow

are spread over the term of those borrowings.
The loan facility comprises a Core facility (expiring 30 October 2020) and a Seasonal Facility which
is renewed on an annual basis. The loan facilities are secured against the property and assets of

3-12 mths

1-2 yrs

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

2-5 yrs

Alliance given under a Security Trust Deed. As such all Parent company inventory is effectively pledged

2019

as security for the borrowing facility. The Seasonal facility is tailored to reflect the seasonal working

Loans and borrowings

84,900

85,115

215

21,400

63,500

-

Trade and other payables

85,139

85,139

85,139

-

-

-

2018
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables

72,100
81,609

72,354
81,609

254
81,609

12,100
-

capital cycle. Undrawn facility at year end was $38 million.
The interest rate is currently 4.35% (2018: 4.55%). The financial covenants under these facilities have
been fully complied with during the year.

82

< 3 months

60,000
-
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INTERE ST R ATE RISK

Fair value hedge:
Changes in the fair value of hedges that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in

exposed to P&L fluctuations as hedge accounting is not applied for interest rate swap.

the income statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attributable to the hedged risk. If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item is amortised to the income statement over the

Cash flow sensitivity*

period to maturity.

At 30 September 2019, it is estimated that an increase in interest rates of 100 basis points would decrease
the group’s profit before income tax by approximately $1.9 million (2018 $1.6 million).

Cash flow hedge:
Changes in fair value of hedges that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and are considered

* Calculated using average of year rates

effective for accounting purposes are recognised thru other comprehensive income into the cash flow

Fair value sensitivity

hedge reserve (in equity). The gain or loss relating to any ineffective element is recognised immediately in

At 30 September 2019, it is estimated that for interest rate hedge instruments, an increase in interest rates

the income statement. Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are recycled in the income

of 100 basis points would decrease the group’s profit before income tax by approximately $0.28 million

statement in the periods when the forecast transactions take place.

(2018 increase $0.05 million).

M E A S U R E M E N T O F FA I R VA LU E
Alliance’s financial instruments carried at fair value are defined as level 2 for valuation purposes for 2019

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

and 2018 financial periods. At 30 September the fair value of Alliance’s derivative financial instruments was

The Group operates internationally, and is subject to the risk of financial losses arising from adverse
exchange rate movements in USD, EUR, GBP CAD, JPY and AUD. Risks arises due to the risk associated with
the cash receipts made in currency exposure other than the functional currency. To manage the foreign
exchange risks the Group enters into financial market derivatives. All foreign exchange contracts on hand
at balance date are expected to impact profit or loss within 12 months.

amount of the exposures at any one time and the effect of movements in the exchange rate. The NZD
equivalent of the notional amount of foreign exchange contracts at balance date are in D2.

of the New Zealand dollar in respect to foreign exchange currency derivatives that the company had in
place at balance date:
2019

Foreign exchange options:
The fair value has two components being;
–

intrinsic value, being the difference between the option strike rate and the current market rate, and

–	time value, this can never be negative, and represents the dollar value that the option has of the time

The following table shows the estimated pre-tax impact on the group of a general 10% change in the value

10% increase in value of NZD
10% decrease in value of NZD

Fair value is the difference between the contract exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rates to

swap curve.

Alliance Group has foreign exposures throughout the financial year which fluctuate both in terms of the

2018

left to run to maturity.
The intrinsic value of the option, if it is deemed effective is taken through the hedge reserve in equity.
The time value is deferred to the cashflow hedge reserve.
The fair value uses a discounted cash flow and applies observable option volatilities and quoted forward

Equity

Profit
& loss

Equity

$000

$000

$000

$000

6,426
(9,038)

4,890
(6,758)

1,789
(2,041)

2,947
(3,625)

& loss

Foreign exchange contract:

flows and applying published forward exchange rates and discount rates based on the forward interest rate

The following disclosures relate to the valuation of foreign exchange exposures as at 30 September.

Profit

a $1.9 million liability (2018: $0.7 million liability).

close it out at the reporting date. This is calculated by using the present value of the estimated future cash

Alliance currently hedge up to 100% of trade debtors denominated in a foreign currency.

D E R I VAT I VE F INANC IAL I NST RUME NT S

exchange and interest rates that match the maturity dates of the contracts.
Interest rate derivative:
The fair value is the estimated amount that the Group would pay or receive if the contract stopped at
the reporting date. This is calculated by discounting the future interest and principal cash flows using
published market interest rates that match the maturity dates of the contracts and discount rates based
on the forward interest rate swap curve. The fair value uses a discounted cash flow and applies observable
option volatilities and quoted forward exchange and interest rates that match the maturity dates

What is a derivative?

of the contracts.

A derivative is a type of financial instrument typically used to manage the interest rate and foreign

All financial derivatives entered into by Alliance are traded under ISDA agreements which allow the

exchange risks that the Group faces due to its business operations. The different types of derivative
used are:
Forward exchange contracts:

offsetting of assets and liabilities in the event of a default.
The following table details the notional principal amounts of derivatives at the end of the reporting period:

This contract enables the Group to purchase or sell foreign currency at a set rate at a future date.

2019

Foreign exchange option:

Notional
principal

An option gives the ability to manage risk with the potential to benefit from favourable foreign exchange
movements, while defining the best/worst case cash-flow outcome on an agreed future date.

$000

Interest rate swap:
This contract allows the Group to obtain a fixed interest rate on a fixed borrowing amount for a
future date.
RECOGNITION
Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value on the date the contracts are agreed and are
re-measured on a periodic basis. The recognition of movements in fair value depends upon the hedging
instrument and its designation or classification, as summarised below:

84
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The group is exposed to interest rate risk on movements in floating interest rates on loans and borrowings.
Alliance manage interest rate volatility to cash flow using pay-fixed interest rate swap. The group remain

D2

S E C T I O N 1 2 : Our Financial Review

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
- Foreign exchange contracts
Derivatives not designated as cash flow hedges
- Interest rate swaps
- Forward rate agreements
- Foreign exchange contracts

2018
Fair
value
$000

Notional
principal
$000

Fair
value
$000

57,310

(532)

80,787

(10)

58,000
76,014

(1,060)
(351)

51,000
60,000
75,199

(499)
(34)
(123)

191,324

(1,943)

266,986

(666)
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The company has the
following investments:

IN THIS SECTION

Principal activity

Country Balance date

This section provides information to help readers understand the Alliance group structure and how it affects the

SUBSIDIARIES
The financial statements include the financial statements of Alliance Group Limited and the subsidiaries
listed below.
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control exists when the group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefit from its activities. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which
control commences until the date on which control ceases.
The company has the following investments:
Country

(b)

E2

Investments in subsidiaries
New Zealand Holdings (UK) Limited and its trading
subsidiary Alliance Group (NZ) Ltd

2018

Ownership
interest

Ownership
interest

Associates

financial position and performance of the group.
E1

2019

Balance date

United
Kingdom

2019

2018

Ownership
interest

Ownership
interest

100.0%

100.0%

30-Sep

A SS O CIATE S
MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION
Associates are those entities in which Alliance has significant influence, being the ability to
participate in however not control the financial and operating decisions of the entity.
Joint ventures are those entities in which Alliance has joint control and has rights to the net assets

The Lamb Co-operative Inc.

Marketing

USA

30-Sep

44.0%

44.9%

The NZ and Australian Lamb
Company Ltd

Marketing

CAN

30-Sep

43.8%

43.0%

Procurement and processing of pigs

NZ
NZ
NZ

30-Sep
30-Sep
30-Sep

50.0%
50.0%
50.0%

50.0%
50.0%
50.0%

NZ

31-Dec

50.0%

0.0%

Joint ventures
Porkcorp New Zealand Ltd
Alpine Origin Merino Ltd
High Health Alliance Limited
Meateor GP Limited

Research and development
Research and development
Supply of meat ingredients to
pet food industry

Investments in equity accounted investees
Movements in carrying value of equity accounted investments:
Balance at beginning of year
Investment in share capital
Add patronage dividends issued as advances
Add patronage dividends reinvested
Less withholding tax on dividends
Less promissory notes repaid
Add share of foreign exchange translation reserve

2019

2018

$000

$000

28,927
18,860
2,666
(606)
(2,571)
473

27,682
3,415
92
(850)
(3,468)
574

47,749

27,445

of the venture.

Add share of profit after tax
Less dividends received

2,883
(1,200)

1,482
-

Associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting where the

Closing balance

49,432

28,927

This balance comprises:
Shares in associate companies and joint ventures
Advances to associated companies at cost
Share of post-acquisition increases in net assets
Share of foreign exchange translation reserve

25,290
10,896
16,478
(3,232)

6,430
10,896
15,306
(3,705)

Closing balance

49,432

28,927

investment is recorded at cost plus its share of any profit or loss during the ownership period.
Any dividends received are deducted from the investment value.
If Alliance’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the carrying amount of that
interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that Alliance has an obligation or has made payments on behalf
of the entity.

Summary financial information for equity accounted investees and proportionately consolidated entities,
not adjusted for the percentage ownership:

Associates and joint ventures
2018
2019

The notes to the Group financial statements form an integral par t of these financial statements.
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Total assets

Total
liabilities

Revenues

Profit
(loss)

$000
135,356
234,649

$000
84,047
135,153

$000
764,419
808,297

$000
11,904
13,909

The notes to the Group financial statements form an integral par t of these financial statements.
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COMMITMENTS
Group

IN THIS SECTION

Operating leases

This section includes information required to comply with financial reporting standards that is not
covered in other sections.
F1

R E L AT E D PA RT I E S
Transactions with related parties, including directors, are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable
as follows:
Less than one year
Between one and five years
After five years

arm’s length transactions.
PA R E N T A N D U LT I M AT E C O N T RO L L I N G PA RT Y

Operating lease expense recognised

The immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group is Alliance Group Limited.

The Company has a related party relationship with each of its subsidiary companies outlined in Section E.
The Company has a related party relationship with its key management personnel.

Sales to associates and joint ventures
Rebates received from associates
Dividends from joint ventures
Interest received by the Company from associates
Purchases from related parties
Receipts from related parties
Balances with related parties
Amounts owed to the Company by associates
Loans to associates
Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employee benefits
Directors’ fees – Alliance Group Limited

2018

$000

$000

3,295
5,452
1,874

3,504
5,002
1,549

10,621

10,055

4,419

3,739

MEASUREMENT AND RECOGNITION

I D E N T I T Y O F R E L AT E D PA RT I E S

Transactions with related parties

2019

Operating leases are leases where the lessors retain substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased items. Lease payments including any incentives received are recognised in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Group

C APITAL E XPENDITURE COMMITMENT S

2019

2018

$000

$000

202,600
2,666
1,200
67
(11,022)
1,250

171,608
3,415
144
(9,639)
907

20,034
20,885

10,836
20,046

Group
2019

Balance of payments for approved capital expenditure

2018

$000

$000

6,586

10,579

Group
2019

2018

$000

$000

4,566
163
788

5,050
214
775

Key management personnel are the Alliance Group Executive Leadership Team and Alliance Group’s
Board of Directors.
Benefits paid to the Leadership Team include salaries, non cash benefits and contributions to post
employment superannuation schemes.
F2

AUDITOR S’ REMUNER ATION
Group

Audit fees – KPMG
Audit fees – Grant Thornton (UK)
Fees for other services – KPMG
Fees for other services – Grant Thornton
Total

2019

2018

$000
216
58
28
8

$000
217
56
15

310

288

Other services performed by Grant Thornton are for taxation services.
KPMG other services comprised of financial modelling services.
88
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F 6 	N E W S T A N D A R D S A N D I N T E R P R E T A T I O N S
New accounting standards

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2019
Components that make up the capital and reserves of Alliance Group and the changes of each component
during the year.

NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
and introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets.
Alliance Group has reviewed its measurement of financial instruments in accordance with the new standard. No changes in
classification or measurement have been required for any financial instruments, which include foreign exchange contracts, trade and

Reserves

Group

Share
capital

Foreign
currency
translation

$000

$000

Balance at 1 October 2017

76,328

(14,726)

Profit after tax for the year

-

-

-

other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Cashflow
hedge

Total

$000

$000

261,757

323,158

-

6,602

6,602

-

191

-

191

-

2,594

-

-

2,594

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

2,594

191

6,602

9,387

Bonus share issue

-

-

-

(9,483)

(9,483)

3,064

-

-

-

3,064

-

-

(2,923)

-

9,870

Net change in fair value of financial
instruments
Movement in foreign currency translation
reserve

Shares issued – ordinary shares
Shares surrendered – ordinary shares

(2,923)

$000

Retained
earnings

(201)

Share issue pending

9,870

-

-

Total transactions with owners

10,011

-

-

Balance at 30 September 2018

86,339

(12,132)

(10)

258,876

333,073

Balance at 1 October 2018

86,339

(12,132)

(10)

258,876

333,073

Profit after tax for the year

-

-

4,970

4,970

-

-

-

215

-

215

Net change in fair value of financial
instruments
Movement in foreign currency translation
reserve
Total comprehensive income for the year

-

(9,483)

528

adoption.
The new hedge accounting rules align the accounting for hedging instruments more closely with Alliance’s risk management practices.
As a general rule, more hedge relationships should be eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard introduces a more principles-based
approach. From 1 October 2018, Alliance’s hedge documentation was updated to align with the requirements of NZ IFRS 9. Alliance’s
current hedge relationships qualify as continuing cash flow hedges upon the adoption of NZ IFRS 9. Under NZ IFRS 9, Alliance’s forward
foreign exchange contracts are accounted for as cash flow hedges, whereby the changes in the full fair value of the forward contract
is recognised in other comprehensive income (to the extent the hedge is effective). Accordingly, NZ IFRS 9 does not have a significant
impact on Alliance’s accounting treatment for its hedging relationships. The nature and extent of Alliance’s disclosure note for its
hedging relationships has been changed and been incorporated into these consolidated financial statements for the period ended 30
September 2019 (refer note D2).
Impairment of debtors is now measured using the expected credit losses model rather than only incurred credit losses in accordance
with NZ IAS 39. The standard applies to Alliance for financial assets classified at amortised cost, being Alliance Group’s trade
receivables. Based on Alliance’s assessment of historical provision rates and forward-looking analysis, there is no material impact on
the impairment provisions.
NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under NZ IFRS 15, Alliance Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.
Alliance Group has reviewed its recognition of revenue on application of NZ IFRS 15 and has determined there are two performance
obligations in its contracts with customers for export sales. The first being the supply of goods and secondly the arranging and paying
for shipping and insurance on behalf of the customer. Adoption of this standard has meant the Group’s revenue now excludes the
amount attributable to the second performance obligation.

Standards and interpretations not yet adopted
NZ IFRS 16 Leases will replace the current guidance in NZ IAS 17. Under NZ IAS 17, a lessee is required to make a distinction between

(341)
(341)

-

(341)

-

215

4,970

4,844

2,711
(3,774)
3,462

-

-

6
-

6
2,711
(3,774)
3,462

Total transactions with owners

3,399

-

-

6

2,405

Balance at 30 September 2019

88,738

263,852

340,322

Bonus share issue
Shares issued – ordinary shares
Shares surrendered – ordinary shares
Share issue pending

In accordance with the transitional provisions in NZ IFRS 9, Alliance has not restated comparative amounts for the period prior to

(11,917)

(351)

F 5 	E V E N T S S U B S E Q U E N T T O B A L A N C E D A T E
There have been no events subsequent to balance date which have had a material effect on the financial
performance and financial position reported in these statements.

operating leases (off balance sheet) and finance leases (on balance sheet). NZ IFRS 16 will require a lessee to recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability for all leases by lessees (i.e. all on balance sheet) except for short-term leases and leases of
low value assets. The income statement will also be impacted by the recognition of an interest expense and an amortisation expense as
well as the removal of the current lease rental expense.
This standard will affect primarily the accounting treatment for Alliance Group’s operating leases. As at 30 September 2019, Alliance
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of $10.6 million. On adoption, NZ IFRS 16 will have a material impact on the
Alliance Group’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Income Statement.
Management has developed a model to calculate the full quantitative impact of their current operating leases under NZ IFRS 16 as at 1
October 2019, being the date of adoption. The model requires management to make some key judgements including:
- The incremental borrowing rate used to discount lease assets and liabilities; and
- The lease term including potential rights of renewals.
The impact on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position for the period ending 30 September 2020 is expected to be:
- Recognition of a right of use asset of approximately $7.8 million;
- Recognition of a lease liability of approximately $8.1 million; and
- Decrease in opening retained earnings of approximately $0.26 million.
The impact on the Consolidated Income Statement for the period ending 30 September 2020 is expected to be:
- Decrease in the operating lease expense of approximately $3.7 million;
- Increase in depreciation and amortisation expense of approximately $3.6 million; and
- Increase in finance expenses (interest expense) of approximately $0.43 million.
The above changes are for financial reporting purposes only and will have no cashflow effect to Alliance Group.
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Current estimates are likely to change for the period ending 30 September 2020, mainly due to:
- Finalisation of management’s judgements and subsequent movements in the inherent borrowing rate (interest rates);
- New lease contracts entered into by Alliance Group;

S E C T I O N 1 2 : Our Financial Review

ALLIANCE GROUP ANNUAL REP ORT 2019

FOREIGN CURRENCY
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are converted at the exchange rates at the dates of the

- Changes to existing lease contracts; and

transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities (such as receivables and payables) are translated at the rate

- Change in management’s judgement to exercise rights of renewals under lease agreements.

prevailing at balance date.

Adopting the retrospective approach under NZ IFRS 16, Alliance Group will not restate comparative amounts for the period prior to

The assets and liabilities of international subsidiaries are translated to New Zealand dollars at the closing rate at

first adoption and will instead make the adjustment to opening retained earnings referred to above of approximately $0.26 million, as
outlined in NZ IFRS 16 paragraph C7.
Alliance Group will apply the following practical expedient in adopting NZ IFRS 16:
- The use of hindsight to determine the lease term where the lease contains options to extend or terminate the lease;

balance date. The revenue and expenses of these subsidiaries are translated at rates approximating the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of subsidiary financial statements are recorded in the foreign

- The option to exclude initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

currency translation reserve (equity). Cumulative translation differences are recognised in the income statement in

- The option to apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

the period in which any international subsidiary is disposed of.

A B O U T T H I S R E P O RT

The principal functional currency of international subsidiaries is UK dollars; the closing rate at balance date was

IN THIS SECTION

0.5103 (30 September 2018: 0.5058). A full list of international subsidiary functional currencies is in note
E1 Subsidiaries.

The notes to the financial statements within sections A to F include information that is considered relevant and

OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

material to assist the reader in understanding changes in Alliance Groups financial position or performance.

Other accounting policies that are relevant to an understanding of the financial statements are provided

Information is considered material if:

throughout the notes to the financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied to the

- the amount is significant because of its size and nature;
- it is important for understanding the results of Alliance Group;

periods in these financial statements. Where applicable comparatives have been amended to align with current
year’s expenses.

- it helps explain changes in Alliance Group’s business; or

CRITIC AL JUD GEMENT S AND E STIMATE S

- it relates to an aspect of Alliance Group’s operations that is important to future performance.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise its judgement in applying Alliance
Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are reviewed by management on an on-going basis,

REP ORTING ENTIT Y

with revisions recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Alliance Group Limited is a for-profit entity domiciled in New Zealand and registered under the Companies Act 1993

Areas of estimate or judgement that have most significant impact on the amounts recognised in the

and the Co operative Companies Act 1996. The company is an FMC Entity in terms of the Financial Markets Conduct

financial statements are:

Act 2013 and prepares its financial statements in accordance with this Act and the Financial Reporting
Act 2013.
The consolidated financial statements are for Alliance Group Limited and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
“Alliance”) and Alliance Group’s interests in associates as at and for the year ended 30 September 2019.
Alliance Group is primarily involved in meat processing and export sales.
S TAT E M E N T O F C O M P L I A N C E A N D B A S I S O F P R E PA R AT I O N
The financial statements have been prepared:
- i n accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) in New Zealand and comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the New Zealand equivalents (NZ IFRS), as
appropriate for a for-profit entity;
- o n the basis of going concern. The directors, having considered projected future performance and the
availability of financing, consider the going concern basis to be appropriate; and

- Note B2

Inventories

- N ote D2

Derivative financial instruments

R E - P R E S E N TAT I O N O F C E RTA I N P R I O R Y E A R C O M PA R AT I V E S
To assist the users understanding of these financial statements, the following reclassifications and disclosure
adjustments have been made:
- A change in the basis which revenue is determined resulted in the 2018 figure of $1.768 billion being
changed to $1.715 billion. As a result of this, cost of sales has been changed from $1.707 billion to
$1.655 billion.
- A correction in the comparatives for A3 Personnel expenses has resulted in a reclassification between
wages and salaries and employer contribution to defined contribution plans of $3.9 million.
- C ertain fixed assets have been reclassified from buildings to land improvements. The result is a
reclassification of 2018 figures from $25.1 million to $25.5 million between buildings and land in B1.
These reclassification and adjustments have no impact on the financial performance of Alliance Group Limited.

- i n New Zealand dollars, with all values rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless otherwise stated.
In preparing the Group financial statements, all material intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses
have been eliminated. Subsidiaries are consolidated on the date on which control is obtained to the date on which
control is lost.

M J Taggart
DIRECTOR

P M Schuyt
DIRECTOR

20 November 2019
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at $1,000,000 determined with reference to a benchmark of group total revenue. We chose the benchmark because, in our
view, this is a key measure of the group’s performance.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Alliance Group Limited

To the shareholders
of Alliance
Group Limited
Key audit
matters

Report on the consolidated financial statements
To the shareholders of Alliance Group Limited
ToOpinion
the shareholders of Alliance Group Limited
Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
In ouron
opinion,
theofaccompanying
consolidated
Report
the audit
the consolidated
financial statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Alliance Group Limited (the
financial statements which comprise:
company)
and
its
subsidiaries
(the
group)
on
pages
Opinion
— the consolidated statement of financial position
57
to 79:
Opinion
at 30
September
2018;
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
Weashave
audited
the accompanying
consolidated
i.statements
present
fairly
in
all
material
respects
the
Group’s
In our opinion,
the accompanying
consolidated
financial
We
have
audited
the
accompanying
consolidated
of Alliance
Group Limited
(the ’company’)
financial
statements
which
comprise:
— the consolidated income statement,
financial of
position
as at 30Limited
September
2018 and
statements
Alliance
(the 71
’company’)
financial
statements
which
comprise:
and
its subsidiaries
(theGroup
'group') on pages
to 93:
of other comprehensive income,
—statements
the consolidated statement of financial position as
performance
and
flows
anditsitsfinancial
subsidiaries
(the 'group')
oncash
pages
71 tofor
93:the
changes
in equity statement
and cash flows
for the
year as
—
the
consolidated
of financial
position
at 30 September 2019;
i. year
present
fairly
all material
respects the Group’s
ended
oninthat
date; and
then
ended;
and
at 30 September 2019;
i. financial
present fairly
in allasmaterial
respects the
Group’s
position
at 30 September
2019
and its
—notes,
the consolidated income statement, statements of
ii. comply
with
NewasZealand
Equivalents
toand its
financial
position
at
30
September
2019
—
including a income
summary
of significant
financial performance and cash flows for the year
— the
consolidated
statement,
statements
of
other
comprehensive income,
changes
in equity and
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards
and
financial
performance
and
cash
flows
for
the
year
accounting
policies
and
other
explanatory
ended on that date; and
otherflows
comprehensive
changes
International
cash
for the yearincome,
then ended;
andin equity and
ended on thatFinancial
date; andReporting Standards.
information.
cash
flows
for
the
year
then
ended;
and
ii. comply with New Zealand Equivalents to
— notes, including a summary of significant
ii. International
comply with New
Zealand
Equivalents
to
Financial Reporting Standards.
— accounting
notes, including
a summary
ofexplanatory
significant
policies
and other
International Financial Reporting Standards.
accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
information.

Report
the consolidated
financial
statements
Key
auditon
matters
are those matters
that, in
our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the current period. We summarise below those matters and our key audit procedures
Opinion
to address those matters in order that the shareholders as a body may better understand the process by which we arrived
opinion,
theOur
accompanying
consolidated
We have
audited
at In
ourour
audit
opinion.
procedures were
undertaken in the context
of and
solelythe
foraccompanying
the purpose of consolidated
our statutory audit
financial
statements
of
Alliance
Group
Limited
(the
financial
statements
which
comprise:
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole and we do not express discrete opinions on separate elements
and itsfinancial
subsidiaries
(the group) on pages
of company)
the consolidated
statements
— the consolidated statement of financial position
57 to 79:
as at 30 September 2018;
The key audit matter
How the matter was addressed in our audit
i. present fairly in all material respects the Group’s
— the consolidated income statement,
financial position as at 30 September 2018 and
Carrying value of Property, plant and equipment ($236m – refer tostatements
note B1) of other comprehensive income,
its financial performance and cash flows for the
changes in equity and cash flows for the year
year ended on that date; and
then ended; and
The Group continues to undertake
Our audit procedures included:
ii.
comply
with
New
Zealand
Equivalents
to
substantial investment in production
—ofnotes,
includingassessment
a summary
significant
• and
Challenge
management’s
ofof
indicators
of impairment
International
Financial
Reporting Standards
technology
to enhance
productivity
accounting
policies
and
other
explanatory
International
Financial
Reporting Standards. to the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment;
efficiencies
and drive
improved
information.
shareholder returns.
•
Assessment of the mathematical accuracy and consistency with the
audited financial statements of the discounted cash flow model
Declining national livestock numbers
used to support the carrying value of Property, Plant and
and changes in on-farm practices which
Equipment;
alter the timing
of thefor
processing
Basis
opinion
season, impact the throughput of
•
Challenging management’s key assumptions used in the discounted
We conducted
our
audit
in accordance
Standards
onparticular
Auditing forecast
(New Zealand)
(NZ)’). We
processing
plants.
We
consider
that this, with International
cash flow
model, in
earnings(‘ISAs
through:
believe that
the
audit
evidence
combined
with
the
historic
plant we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
o Comparison
of forecast
to historical
actualCode
results;
We are independent
of the group in accordance with Professional
and Ethical
Standard
1 (Revised)
of
reorganisation
and rationalisation
Ethics
for
Assurance
Practitioners
issued
by
the
New
Zealand
Auditing
and
Assurance
Standards
Board
and
completed by the Group and its
o Review of consistency with external market analysisthe
from
International
Ethics
Standards
Board
for
Accountants’
Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
competitors, to be an indicator of
the Ministry of Primary Industries and other industry
Code), and we
have fulfilled
our other
in accordance with these requirements and the
impairment,
requiring
management
to ethical responsibilities sources.
IESBA Code.
assess the appropriateness of the
Our responsibilities under ISAs (NZ) are further•described
in theof
auditor’s
responsibilities
forassess
the audit
Engagement
our valuation
specialists to
the of the
carrying value of Property, plant and
consolidated financial statements section of our report.
reasonableness of the valuation model used to support the carrying
equipment at year end.
Subject to certain restrictions, partners and employees
ourkey
firm
may also deal
with the group on normal terms
valueofand
assumptions
applied;
within
the ordinary
course
of trading
activities of the business of the group. These matters have not impaired our
We
consider
the carrying
value
of
sensitivity analysis
valuation
independence
as auditor
of the
no other relationship
with, oron
interest
in, assumptions
the group. including
Property,
plant and
equipment
to group.
be a The firm• hasPerforming
the
terminal
growth
rate
and
the
discount
rate.
.
key audit matter due to the judgement
associated with forecast future
We have no matters to report as a result of our procedures.
performance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (‘ISAs (NZ)’). We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Basis for
opinion
We are independent
of opinion
the group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of
Basis for
Ethics
for
Assurance
Practitioners
issued
the New Zealand
Auditing
and Assurance
Standards
Board
the
We conducted our audit in accordance
with by
International
Standards
on Auditing
(New Zealand)
(‘ISAs (NZ)’).
Weand
believe
International
Ethics
Standards
Board for
Accountants’
Code
of Ethics
for Professional
Accountants
(IESBA
We
conducted
our
audit
in
accordance
with
International
Standards
on
Auditing
(New
Zealand)
(‘ISAs
(NZ)’).
We
believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Code),
weevidence
have fulfilled
ourobtained
other ethical
responsibilities
in accordance
these
that theand
audit
we have
is sufficient
and appropriate
to providewith
a basis
for requirements
our opinion. and the
We areCode.
independent of the group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for
IESBA
We are
independent
of the
group
in accordance
with
Professional
and
Ethical
Standard
1 (Revised)
Code
of Ethics
Assurance
Practitioners
issued
by(NZ)
the
New
Zealand
Auditing
and
Assurance
Standards
Board
and
International
Ethics
Our
responsibilities
under
ISAs
are further
described
in the
auditor’s
responsibilities
forthe
the
audit
of thefor
Assurance Board
Practitioners
issued by the
New
Zealand
and Assurance
Standards
Board and
consolidated
financial
statements
section
of our
report.
Standards
for Accountants’
Code
of Ethics
forAuditing
Professional
Accountants
(‘IESBA Code’),
andthe
weInternational
have fulfilledEthics
our
Standards
Board
for
Accountants’
Code
of
Ethics
for
Professional
Accountants
(‘IESBA
Code’),
and
we
have
fulfilled
our
Subject
to certain
restrictions,
partners and
employees
of our firm
may
deal
with the group on normal terms
other ethical
responsibilities
in accordance
with
these requirements
and
thealso
IESBA
Code.
other
ethical
responsibilities
in
accordance
with
these
requirements
and
the
IESBA
Code.
within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the group. These matters have not impaired our
Our responsibilities under ISAs (NZ) are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
independence as auditor of the group. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the group.
Our
responsibilities
ISAs
are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial
statementsunder
section
of (NZ)
our report.
financial statements section of our report.
Our firm has also provided other services to the group in relation to staff secondments. Subject to certain restrictions,
Our
firm has
provided
services
to the
group
relation
secondments.
Subject
to certain
restrictions,
partners
and also
employees
of other
our firm
may also
deal
within
the
group to
onstaff
normal
terms within
the ordinary
course
of trading
Other
information
partners
and
employees
of
our
firm
may
also
deal
with
the
group
on
normal
terms
within
the
ordinary
course
of trading
activities of the business of the group. These matters have not impairment our independence as audit of the group.
The
activities
of
the
business
of
the
group.
These
matters
have
not
impairment
our
independence
as
audit
of
the
group.
The
firm
has
no
other
relationship
with,
or
interest
in,
the
group.
The Directors, on behalf of the group, are responsible for the other information included in the entity’s Annual
firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the group.
Report. Other information includes the Chairman and Chief Executive’s report and disclosures relating to
corporate governance and statutory information and the other information included in the Annual report. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not express
any form of Materiality
assurance conclusion thereon.
Materiality
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements our responsibility is to read the other
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Materiality helped us to determine the nature,
information
and,
in doing
so, consider
whether the
other information
is helped
materially
with the
The
scope
our audit
was
influenced
by our
materiality.
Materiality
usindividually
to inconsistent
determine
timing
andof
extent
of our
audit
procedures
andapplication
to evaluateofthe
effect of misstatements,
both
andthe
onnature,
the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears materially
timing and extent
of our
audit procedures
andThe
to evaluate
thefor
effect
of
misstatements,
bothstatements
individuallyasand
on thewas set
consolidated
financial
statements
as
a
whole.
materiality
the
consolidated
financial
a
whole
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
consolidated financial statements as a whole. The materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole was set
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information

The Directors, on behalf of the group, are responsible for the other information included in the entity’s Annual
Report. Other information includes the Chairman and Chief Executive’s report and disclosures relating to
Carrying value of trading stocks applying the retail method ($91m – refer to note B2)
corporate governance and statutory information and the other information included in the Annual report. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not express
Consistent with industry practice, the
Our audit procedures included:
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Group adopt the ‘retail method’ to
In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements
ourinventory
responsibility
is to
read the
other
•
Comparing
management’s
valuation
approach
under
the
determine the carrying value of trading
information and, in doing so, consider whetherretail
the method
other information
is
materially
inconsistent
with
the
with the requirements of New Zealand Equivalents to
stock.
Under the retail method
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtainedReporting
in the audit
or otherwise appears materially
International
Standards;
inventory
units
are measured
at thewe have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
misstated.
If, based
on the work
expected
sales valuewe
adjusted
for costtotoreport that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
other information,
are required
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International
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(“KPMG
a Swiss of
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The Directors, on behalf of the company, are responsible for:

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Independent Auditor’s Report
sell and an expected level of gross
margin.

•

Assessing the mathematical accuracy of the calculation and
consistency of the closing trading stock volumes to other audit
procedures completed;

The
method is required
as Group Limited
To
theretail
shareholders
of Alliance
livestock inputs can result in a varying
•
Assessing the build-up of the production and processing costs in
Report on the consolidated financial statements
combination of trading stock outputs
management’s calculation for consistency with audited financial
depending on the assessed market
statements for actual results achieved during the year;
Opinion
demand, and the Group does not
Challenging
management’s
logic
for inclusion or
exclusion of certain
In our opinion,
thecosts
accompanying
We have
audited the
accompanying
consolidated
allocate
processing
to individualconsolidated•
inputs
within
the
calculation;
financial
statements
of
Alliance
Group
Limited
(the
financial
statements
which
comprise:
inventory units.
company) and its subsidiaries (the group) on pages
•
Comparing
the calculated
gross
margin percentage
adjustment
— the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position for
We
57 consider
to 79: that the carrying value of
consistency
with
historical
levels;
as
at
30
September
2018;
trading stock to be a key audit matter
i. present
fairly nature
in all material
respects the Group’s
due
to the unique
of the retail
— the
consolidated
income
statement,
•
Comparing
actual
sales and margin
achieved
subsequent to balance
financial
position
as
at
30
September
2018 and
method and the judgement associated
statements
of of
other
comprehensive
income,
date and prior
to approval
the financial
statements.
its financial performance and cash flows for the
in determining
selling costs and gross
changes in equity and cash flows for the year
year ended on that date; and
We have no matters to
report
as a and
result of our procedures.
margin.
then
ended;
ii. comply with New Zealand Equivalents to
— notes, including a summary of significant
International Financial Reporting Standards and
accounting policies and other explanatory
International Financial Reporting Standards.
information.

Other information
The Directors, on behalf of the group, are responsible for the other information included in the entity’s Annual Report.
Basismay
forinclude
opinion
Other information
the Chairman’s report, Chief Executive’s report, disclosures relating to corporate
governance, statutory information and other information included in the Annual Report. Our opinion on the consolidated
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (‘ISAs (NZ)’). We
financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
thereon.
We are independent of the group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of
Ethics
for Assurance
issued by thefinancial
New Zealand
Auditing
and Assurance
Board
and the
In connection
with ourPractitioners
audit of the consolidated
statements
our responsibility
is toStandards
read the other
information
International
Ethics
Standards
Board
for
Accountants’
Code
of
Ethics
for
Professional
Accountants
(IESBA
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
Code),
and we
have
fulfilled our
other ethical
responsibilities
accordance
with misstated.
these requirements
statements
or our
knowledge
obtained
in the audit
or otherwiseinappears
materially
If, based onand
the the
work we
IESBA
Code.
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
Our
under ISAs
(NZ)inare
further
thatresponsibilities
fact. We have nothing
to report
this
regard.described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report.
Subject to certain restrictions, partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the group on normal terms
within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the group. These matters have not impaired our
independence
as auditor
the group. The firm
has no other
relationship with, or interest in, the group.
Use
of thisofindependent
auditor’s
report

This independent auditor’s report is made solely to the shareholders as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in the independent auditor’s
information
report and Other
for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the shareholders as a body for our audit work, this independent auditor’s report, or any of the opinions
The Directors, on behalf of the group, are responsible for the other information included in the entity’s Annual
we have formed.
Report. Other information includes the Chairman and Chief Executive’s report and disclosures relating to
corporate governance and statutory information and the other information included in the Annual report. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements our responsibility is to read the other
information
and,
in doing
so,company,
consider
thefor:
other information is materially inconsistent with the
The Directors,
on behalf
of the
arewhether
responsible
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears materially
— the preparation
andthe
fairwork
presentation
ofperformed,
the consolidated
financial statements
in aaccordance
with generally accepted
misstated.
If, based on
we have
we conclude
that there is
material misstatement
of this
practice
New Zealand
(beingthat
New
Zealand
Equivalents
International
Financial
other accounting
information,
we areinrequired
to report
fact.
We have
nothingtoto
report in this
regard.Reporting Standards);
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— the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally
—accepted
implementing
necessary
internal
control
to enable
the preparation
of Equivalents
a consolidated
of financial Financial
statements that is
accounting
practice
in New
Zealand
(being
New Zealand
toset
International
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fairly presented
and free
material misstatement,
whether
due to fraud or error; and
Reporting
Standards)
andfrom
International
Financial Reporting
Standards;

—implementing
assessing the ability
to continue
a goingto
concern.
disclosing,
as applicable,set
matters
related to going
—
necessary
internalascontrol
enableThis
the includes
preparation
of a consolidated
of financial

concern andthat
using
the going
concernand
basis
of accounting
unless
they either intend
to liquidate
or to cease
operations,
statements
is fairly
presented
free
from material
misstatement,
whether
due to fraud
or error;
and
have no realistic
alternative
but to
do so.
To theorshareholders
of Alliance
Group
Limited
— assessing the ability to continue as a going concern. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going
concern
and using
the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate or to
Report
on the
consolidated
financial
statements
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

OpinionAuditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated
We have audited the accompanying consolidated
Our objective is:
financial statements
of
Alliance
Group
Limited
(the
financialof
statements
which comprise:
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
the consolidated
financial
company)
and
its
subsidiaries
(the
group)
on
pages
— to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from
— the consolidated statement of financial position
57 to
79: statements
material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and as at 30 September 2018;

Our
is:independent
i. objective
present
fairly
in all material
respects
the
Group’s
—
to issue an
auditor’s
report
that
includes our—
opinion.
the consolidated income statement,
financial
position
as
at
30
September
2018
andthe consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
—
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
statements of other comprehensive income,
Reasonable
assurance
is
a
high
level
of
assurance,
but
is
not
a
guarantee
its financial
andwhether
cash flows
the or error; and that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
from
materialperformance
misstatement,
duefor
to fraud
changes in equity and cash flows for the year
NZ will
always
detect
a material
misstatement when it exists.
year
ended
on that
date; and
then ended; and
—
to issue an independent auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Misstatements
canNew
ariseZealand
from fraud
or error. They
ii. comply with
Equivalents
to are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
—users
including
a summary
of
significant
Reasonable
assurance
istoa influence
high
levelthe
ofStandards
assurance,
but is not
a notes,
guarantee
an
audit
conducted
in accordance
reasonably
be
expected
economic
decisions
of
taken
onthat
the basis
of these
consolidated
financial
International
Financial
Reporting
and
accounting
policies
and
other
explanatory
with
ISAs
NZ will always
detect
a material
misstatement when it exists.
statements.
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards.
information.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate,
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of these consolidated financial statements is located at the
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
External Reporting
Board
(XRB) website at:
consolidated
financial
statements.
Ahttp://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/audit-report-1/
further description of our responsibilities for the audit of these consolidated financial statements is located at
the External Reporting Board (XRB) website at: http://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assuranceBasis
forpart
opinion
This description
forms
of our independent auditor’s report.
practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/audit-report-5/
This
description
forms
part
of
independent
report.
We
our
audit
in
with International
Standards
on Auditing
Theconducted
engagement
partner
onaccordance
theour
audit
resulting
inauditor’s
this independent
auditor's
report is(New
PeterZealand)
Taylor (‘ISAs (NZ)’). We
The
engagement
partner
on
the
audit
resulting
in
this
independent
auditor's report
is Peter
Taylor.
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide
a basis
for our opinion.
For
and
on
behalf
of
We are independent of the group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of
For
andfor
onAssurance
behalf of Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board and the
Ethics
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code.
KPMG
Our responsibilities under ISAs (NZ) are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
Christchurch
KPMG
consolidated
financial statements section of our report.
Christchurch
22
November
2018restrictions, partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the group on normal terms
Subject to certain
within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the group. These matters have not impaired our
20 November 2019
independence as auditor of the group. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the group.

© 2018 KPMG, a New Zealand partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG
International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

Other information

2

The Directors, on behalf of the group, are responsible for the other information included in the entity’s Annual
Report. Other information includes the Chairman and Chief Executive’s report and disclosures relating to
corporate governance and statutory information and the other information included in the Annual report. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

© 2018 KPMG, a New Zealand partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
Directors have disclosed interests in the following entities
pursuant to Section 140 of the Companies Act 1993:

The directors present to shareholders the seventieth Annual Report and

Director

Entity

Relationship

Financial Statements of the company for the year ended 30 September 2019.

S M Brown

Sarah Brown and Associates Ltd

Director

Wanganui Collegiate School—College Board of Trustees

Trustee

Arrow Dairy Limited

Independent Advisor

Benmore Downs Limited

Director

Salvation Army Jeff Farm Management Board

Member

Kakapo Farms Partnership

Chairman

Platinum Dairies Limited

Chairman

Takitimu Discussion Group

Facilitator

Takitimu Discussion Group

Member

R G & J M Drummond Farms Ltd

Director

Upper Aparima Catchment Group

Member

ACE Aparima Community & Environment

Member

Elviti Holdings Ltd, and subsidiaries

Director

GR & JA Milne

Partner

Nyriad Ltd, and subsidiaries

Director

PF Olsen Group Ltd, and subsidiaries

Chairman

Pro-Form Ltd Advisory Board

Chairman

Rimanui Farms Ltd Advisory Board

Chairman

Rockhaven Trust

Trustee

Synlait Milk Ltd, and subsidiaries

Chairman

Terracare Fertilisers Ltd

Chairman

Waikato University

Council Member

Ahika Journeys Ltd

Director

Alpha Sheep Genetics Group

Member

DG & BC Morrison Ltd

Director

Pure Taste New Zealand (NZ) Ltd

Director

W9

Chairman

Community Trust of Maniototo

Chair

Farmlands Co-operative Society Ltd

Director

GlenAyr Ltd

Director

Red Meat Profit Partnership Understanding Your Farming Business

Facilitator

Ahikouka Holdings Ltd

Director

Dairy Investment Fund Ltd

Chairman

DairyNZ Inc

Director

Department of Corrections Audit & Risk Committee

Member

Foodstuffs North Island Ltd

Director

Tatua Co-op Dairy Co Ltd

Director

Tax Management NZ Ltd

Director

F I N A N C I A L R E S U LT

J G Collie

The result for the year is a net profit of $20.7 million
after tax.
INTERESTS REGISTER
The company maintains an Interests Register in
which particulars of certain transactions and matters

R G Drummond

involving the directors are recorded. Entries in the
Interests Register must in turn be disclosed in the
Annual Report. The following entries were recorded in
the Interests Register for the period 1 October 2018 to

G R Milne

30 September 2019.

D G Morrison

H D Sangster

P M Schuyt

M J Taggart

100

TSB Bank Ltd

Director

Ballance Agri-Nutrients Ltd

Director

FMG Insurance Ltd

Director

Oxford Health Charitable Trust

Trustee

Oxford Health Charity Limited

Director

North Canterbury Farmers’ Charitable Trust

Trustee

M J & R M Taggart Partnership

Partner

Tuamata Plantations Ltd

Chairman
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DIRECTOR S REMUNER ATION

Our remuneration policy and practices are designed

The following remuneration was paid during the 2019

to attract, retain and reward high calibre senior

financial year:

leaders for the delivery of results that create value
for our shareholders. This is achieved through market

R E L E VA N T I N T ERE ST S I N S HARE S
Directors have disclosed the following holdings of
relevant interests in Alliance Group Ltd shares pursuant
to Section 148 of the Companies Act 1993:

Sarah Miranda Brown			

74,000

benchmarked remuneration that balances fixed and

Jared Guy Collie			

70,000

variable pay linked directly to the performance of the

Russell Graham Drummond			

70,000

co-operative. The remuneration package for the Chief

Jason Andrew Miller			

70,000

Graeme Roderick Milne			

70,000

Donald George Morrison			

70,000

Hilary Dawn Sangster			

70,000

Shares Held at
30 September 2018

Shares Acquired since
30 September 2018

Shares Held at
30 September 2019

J G Collie

102,348

13,581

115,929

R G Drummond

162,321

28,851

191,172

Peter Martin Schuyt			

80,000

J A Miller

108,438

15,884

124,322

Vanessa Cynthia May Stoddart*			

39,000

Director

D G Morrison

42,229

5,963

48,192

H D Sangster

78,435

17,977

96,412

M J Taggart

57,030

10,615

67,645

Murray James Taggart			

175,000

Executive and Executive Leadership Team is reviewed
annually by the People Committee taking into account
company results, individual performance and market
data supplied by external specialist remuneration
advisors.
CO-OPER ATIVE STATUS
As required by Section 10 of the Co-operative Companies
Act 1996, the following resolution was passed by the
board on 12 November 2019. All directors present voted

* V C M Stoddar t resigned from the board in April 2019

in favour of the resolution:

EMPLOYEE REMUNER ATION

All share transactions were carried out at their nominal

During the year, the numbers of employees of the

“It was the opinion of the board that Alliance Group

value of $1.00 per share.

group who received remuneration including benefits,

Ltd has, throughout the year ended 30 September 2019,

of $100,000 or more were:

been a co-operative company within the meaning of the

R E L AT E D PA RT Y T R A N S A C T I O N S
The company has frequent transactions with its elected
directors conducted on an arm’s length basis in the
ordinary course of business.

102

Remuneration

No. of Employees

$100,000-$110,000

81

$110,001-$120,000

37

$120,001-$130,000

17

$130,001-$140,000

17

$140,001-$150,000

5

$150,001-$160,000

7

$160,001-$170,000

6

$170,001-$180,000

5

$180,001-$190,000

6

$190,001-$200,000

2

$200,001-$210,000

2

$210,001-$220,000

3

$220,001-$230,000

2

$230,001-$240,000

2

$260,001-$270,000

1

$310,001-$320,000

2

$330,001-$340,000

1

$360,001-$370,000

1

$370,001-$380,000

1

$380,001-$390,000

2

$400,001-$410,000

1

$490,001-$500,000

2

$1,180,001-$1,190,000

1

Co-operative Companies Act 1996 on the
following grounds:
(a)	the company carries on, as its principal activity, a
co-operative activity as that term is defined in the
Co-operative Companies Act 1996;
(b)	the constitution of Alliance Group Ltd states
its principal activities as being co-operative
activities;
(c)	not less than 60% of the voting rights of Alliance
Group Ltd were held by Transacting Shareholders
as that term is defined in the Co-operative
Companies Act 1996.”
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Statutor y Information (continued)
DIRECTORS

C O M PA N Y ’ S A F FA I R S

The names of persons holding office as directors of

A profit for the year has been recorded and the

the company as at 30 September 2019 are listed in the

company’s balance sheet remains robust with an

directory on the inside of the back cover.

equity ratio of 63 per cent. Further details of the

AUDITORS
Under Section 200 of the Companies Act 1993 KPMG,
Chartered Accountants, continue in office as auditors.

year under review, including material changes in the
nature of the business of the company or any of its
subsidiaries, are included in the Chairman’s and Chief
Executive’s Review and the financial statements of
the company accompanying this report.
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FIVE YEAR REVIEW

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

000’s

000’s

000’s

000’s

000’s

1,712,937

1,715,460

1,476,407

1,300,101

1,439,667

20,997

10,435

28,737

12,081

9,192

260

79

603

1,970

1,325

Distributions

8,953

26

11,387

9,795

-

Profit after tax and distributions

4,970

6,602

14,426

102

4,625

Fixed assets

236,126

231,562

220,374

207,410

196,364

Total assets

541,007

519,505

454,989

427,800

536,123

Shareholders’ funds

340,322

333,073

323,159

301,828

308,869

Shareholders’ funds as a percentage of total assets

62.9%

64.1%

71.0%

70.6%

57.6%

Ordinary shares

85,271

76,467

72,166

67,008

67,565

Turnover*
Net profit before restructuring costs
and distributions
Restructuring costs

*Prior year turnover figures (2017-2015) have been restated to be consistent with this years financial statements presentation

M J Taggart
DIRECTOR

P M Schuyt
DIRECTOR

20 November 2019
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Section 14

D I R E C T O RY
CORP OR ATE OFFICE

MANAGERS

51 Don Street

Dannevirke Plant

C G Mason

PO Box 845, Invercargill 9840

Levin Plant

A Pelser

Telephone: 03 214 2700

Lorneville Plant

S Pande

Email: executive@alliance.co.nz

Mataura Plant

M Nagel

Website: www.alliance.co.nz

Nelson Plant

S J Baird

Pukeuri Plant

P S Shuker

CHRISTCHURCH OFFICE

Smithfield Plant

K A Morris

Level 3

Alliance NZ Sales

J E M Skurr

123 Victoria Street

Alliance Group (NZ) Ltd

Christchurch Central 8013
ELECTED DIRECTORS
J G Collie		

Winton

R G Drummond

Avondale

J A Miller		

Southdown

D G Morrison

Gore

H D Sangster

Ranfurly

M J Taggart (Chairman)

Oxford

D G Smith

Alliance Asia

A K J Kent

AUDITORS
KPMG
BANKERS
ANZ Bank Ltd
Bank of New Zealand
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd

APPOINTED DIRECTORS
S M Brown

Kimbolton

G R Milne		

Hamilton

P M Schuyt

Wellington

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM
Chief Executive

(UK subsidiary)

D R Surveyor

Company Secretary

D J Hailes

Chief Financial Officer

C J Mathewson

General Manager Sales

S S Kingston

General Manager Supply Chain

G W Faber

General Manager Strategy

N C Jones

General Manager People and Safety

C B Selbie

Rabobank NZ Branch
REGISTERED OFFICE
Level 3
51 Don Street		
Invercargill 9810

Acting General Manager Livestock
and Shareholder Services

D J Hailes

General Manager Manufacturing

W P Wiese

The information in this annual report is for shareholders only and is not to be reproduced in whole or in part without the consent of Alliance Group Ltd.
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51 Don Street, Invercargill 9810
PO Box 845, Invercargill 9840
0800 354 435
03 214 2700
executive@alliance.co.nz
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